

OPERATOR'S MANUAL

MARINE VHF RADIOTELEPHONE

Model

FM-4721

FURUNO ELECTRIC CO., LTD.

www.furuno.com



FURUNO ELECTRIC CO., LTD.

9-52 Ashihara-cho, Nishinomiya, 662-8580, JAPAN \cdot FURUNO Authorized Distributor/Dealer

All rights reserved. | Printed in Japan

Pub. No. 0ME-56840-A6

(TASU) FM-4721

A : MAY 2011 A6 : MAR. 24, 2017

IMPORTANT NOTICES

General

- This manual has been authored with simplified grammar, to meet the needs of international users.
- The operator of this equipment must read and follow the descriptions in this manual. Wrong operation or maintenance can cancel the warranty or cause injury.
- Do not copy any part of this manual without written permission from FURUNO.
- If this manual is lost or worn, contact your dealer about replacement.
- The contents of this manual and equipment specifications can change without notice.
- The example screens (or illustrations) shown in this manual can be different from the screens you see on your display. The screens you see depend on your system configuration and equipment settings.
- Save this manual for future reference.
- Any modification of the equipment (including software) by persons not authorized by FURUNO will cancel the warranty.
- The following concern acts as our importer in Europe, as defined in DECISION No 768/2008/EC.
 Name: FURUNO EUROPE B.V.
 - Address: Ridderhaven 19B, 2984 BT Ridderkerk, The Netherlands
- All brand and product names are trademarks, registered trademarks or service marks of their respective holders.

How to discard this product

Discard this product according to local regulations for the disposal of industrial waste. For disposal in the USA, see the homepage of the Electronics Industries Alliance (http://www.eiae.org/) for the correct method of disposal.

How to discard a used battery

Some FURUNO products have a battery(ies). To see if your product has a battery, see the chapter on Maintenance. Follow the instructions below if a battery is used. Tape the + and - terminals of battery before disposal to prevent fire, heat generation caused by short circuit.

In the European Union

The crossed-out trash can symbol indicates that all types of batteries must not be discarded in standard trash, or at a trash site. Take the used batteries to a battery collection site according to your national legislation and the Batteries Directive 2006/66/EU.

In the USA

The Mobius loop symbol (three chasing arrows) indicates that Ni-Cd and lead-acid rechargeable batteries must be recycled. Take the used batteries to a battery collection site according to local laws.

Ni-Cd Pb

In the other countries

There are no international standards for the battery recycle symbol. The number of symbols can increase when the other countries make their own recycle symbols in the future.

▲ SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS

The operator and installer of this equipment must read the safety instructions before attempting to install or operate the equipment.





Do not touch any part of the antenna when the equipment is transmitting.

Electrical shock can result.

🖄 WARNING

Do not open the equipment unless totally familiar with electrical circuits.

The equipment uses high voltage that can cause electrical shock.

Turn off the power at the mains switchboard before beginning the installation. Post a warning sign near the switchboard to indicate that power should not be applied while the equipment is being installed.

Electrical shock, serious injury or fire can result if the power is not turned off or is applied while the equipment is being installed.



RADIO FREQUENCY RADIATION HAZARD

Distances at which RF radiation level of 100, 10 and 5.05 W/m² are shown below.

100 W/m²: Not applicable 10 W/m²: Not applicable 5.05 W/m²: 1.0 m

Confirm that the power supply voltage is compatible with the voltage rating of the equipment.

Connection to the wrong power supply can cause fire or damage the equipment.

Follow the compass safe distances shown in the table below to prevent interference to a magnetic compass.

	Standard compass	Steering compass
Transceiver Unit FM-4721	1.70 m	1.10 m
Handset HS-4721	0.70 m	0.45 m

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FO SY	FOREWORD SYSTEM CONFIGURATION		vii viii
	0		
1.	GE		1-1
	1.1	Emergency Call (CH16)	
	1.2	How to Call Another Vessel (CH16 or CH9)	
	1.3	How to Make Telephone Calls	
	1.4	Channels 13 and 67 (USA channel group only)	1-2
2.	OPE		2-1
	2.1		
		2.1.1 I ransceiver Unit	
	<u> </u>	2.1.2 Handset HS-4/21	
	2.2		
	2.3	Transmission	
	2.4 2.5	Simpley/Dupley Channel Lice	
	2.0	International Canada and USA Mode	
	2.0	Packlight Adjustment	
	2.1	NOAA Westber Channels	2-0 2 7
	2.0	2.8.1 NOAA weather alert	2-1 2_7
		2.8.1 NOAA weather alert test	2-7 2_7
	29	Dual Watch (To CH16)	2-7 2_8
	2.0	Scanning	2-8
	2.10	2 10 1 How to select the scan type	2-8
		2 10 2 How to program the scan memory	2-9
		2.10.3 Memory scanning (M-SCAN)	
		2 10 4 Priority scanning (P-SCAN)	2-10
	2.11	How to Preset Channels (0-7): Instant Access	
		2.11.1 How to preset channels	
		2.11.2 How to activate preset channels	2-11
		2.11.3 How to delete preset channels	
	2.12	PA HAIL, FOG HORN Operation	
		2.12.1 PA HAIL mode	
		2.12.2 FOG HORN mode	2-12
	2.13	Intercom Operation	2-13
		2.13.1 Communication	2-13
		2.13.2 How to call on the Intercom	2-14
	2.14	Bluetooth Operation (option)	2-14
		2.14.1 Pairing	2-14
		2.14.2 Operation	2-15
		2.14.3 VOX feature	2-15
		2.14.4 Battery saver	2-16
	2.15	Voice Scrambler (option)	2-16
3.	DIG	ITAL SELECTIVE CALLING	3-1
	3.1	General	
	3.2	Maritime Mobile Service Identity (MMSI)	
		3.2.1 What is an MMSI?	
		3.2.2 How to enter your MMSI number	
	3.3	DSC Distress Alert	
		3.3.1 How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert	

	2 1	3.3.2	How to receive a DSC Distress Alert	3-5
	3.4		How to transmit on All China coll	
		3.4.1		
	0 F	3.4.Z	How to receive an All Ships call	3-7
	3.5		Jai Gall	3-7
		3.5.1	How to register DSC stations to the individual Directory	3-7
		3.5.2	How to select the individual call reply method	3-8
		3.5.3	How to select the individual call acknowledge method	3-9
		3.5.4	Individual/Group call ringer	3-9
		3.5.5	How to transmit an Individual call	3-10
	2.0	3.5.0		3-11
	3.0		Jy	2 10
		3.0.1	Distress log	3-13
		3.0.2	Distress log	3-13
		3.0.3	Uther call log	
	07	3.6.4		3-14
	3.1	Group	Uall	3-14
		3.7.1	How to register DSC stations to the Group Directory	3-14
		3.1.Z		
	2.0	J.1.J	How to receive a Group call	3-17
	ა.ი		Here to get up a position request reply	01-د
		3.0.1 202	How to set up the position request ringer	01-د
		3.0.Z	How to set up the position request all to another vessel	2 10
		381	When you receive a Desition Request call	3 20
	30	Dosition	n Report Call	3_20
	0.0	3 9 1	How to enable disable the position report ringer	3-20
		392	How to transmit a Position Report call	0 20
		393	When you receive a Position Report call	3-22
	3.10	Auto D	SC Polling	
		3.10.1	Selecting stations to be automatically polled (tracked)	3-23
		3.10.2	Enable/Disable auto DSC polling	3-24
	3.11	Auto Cl	H Switch Time	3-24
	3.12	DSC Te	est	3-25
		3.12.1	How to make a DSC test call with MMSI in the Individual Directory	3-25
		3.12.2	How to make a DSC test call by manually entering MMSI	3-26
	_			
4.	GEN	IERAL	SETUP	4-1
	4.1	Display	Contrast	4-1
	4.2	Time O	ffset	4-1
	4.3	Time A	rea	4-2
	4.4	Time N	otation	4-2
	4.5	Units of	f Measurement	4-2
	4.6	COGD	hisplay Format	4-3
	4./	Manual	Input of the Position (Lat/Lon)	4-3
	4.8	кеу ве		4-4
	4.9			4-4
	4.10		Nome the Dadie or Handast	4-4
	4.11			4-5
	4.IZ	J 12 1	yə Transçeiyer unit	4-0 1 G
		+.1∠.1 4 12 2	Handset HS-4721	4-0 ⊿_7
	4 13	Calend	ar Setun	- -7 <u>4</u> _7
	4 14	How to	Set the Timeouts	4-9

5.	CH/	ANNEL FUNCTION SETUP	5-1
	5.1	CH Group	5-1
	5.2	Scan Memory	5-1
	5.3	Scan Type	5-2
	5.4	Scan Resume	5-2
	5.5	Priority CH	5-2
	5.6	Weather Alert Setup	5-3
	5.7	Channel Naming	5-4
6.	ATI	S SETUP	6-1
	6.1	ATIS Code Programming	6-1
	6.2	ATIS Channel Group	6-2
7.	MA	INTENANCE,	
	TRC	DUBLESHOOTING7-1	
	7.1	General Maintenance	7-1
	7.2	Troubleshooting Chart	7-2
	7.3	How to Replace the Fuse	7-3
	7.4	How to Clear the Memory	7-3
	7.5	How to Reset the Microprocessor	7-3
	7.6	Daily Test	7-4
8.	INS	TALLATION	8-1
	8.1	Transceiver Unit	8-1
		8.1.1 Desktop or overhead mount	8-1
		8.1.2 Flush mount (option)	8-2
	8.2	Antenna	8-2
	8.3	Coaxial Cable	8-3
	8.4	Electrical Connections	8-3
	8.5	Accessory Cable	8-5
	8.6	Handset HS-4721	8-6
		8.6.1 How to use an external speaker	8-8
	8.7	How to Set up the Equipment from the Menu	8-8
		8.7.1 How to set time offset to show local time	8-8
		8.7.2 How to show local time or UTC time	8-9
		8.7.3 How to set the time notation	8-9
		8.7.4 How to select GPS COG format	8-9
	8.8	Optional Equipment	8-10
		8.8.1 Bluetooth Adapter Unit BU-1	8-10
		8.8.2 Voice Scrambler FVP-42	8-11
AP	PEN	DIX 1 CHANNEL ASSIGNMENTS, MENU TREE	AP-1
SP	ECIF	ICATIONS	5P-1
INC)EX		IN-1

FOREWORD

A Word to the Owner of the FM-4721

FURUNO Electric Company thanks you for purchasing the FM-4721 Marine VHF Radiotelephone. We are confident you will discover why the FURUNO name has become synonymous with quality and reliability.

Since 1948, FURUNO Electric Company has enjoyed an enviable reputation for quality and reliability throughout the world. This dedication to excellence is furthered by our extensive global network of agents and dealers.

Your equipment is designed and constructed to meet the rigorous demands of the marine environment. However, no machine can perform its intended function unless properly installed and maintained. Please carefully read and follow the operation, installation and maintenance procedures set forth in this manual.

We would appreciate feedback from you, the end-user, about whether we are achieving our purposes.

Thank you for considering and purchasing FURUNO.

Features

The FURUNO FM-4721 is a Marine VHF Radiotelephone designed for use in the frequency range of 156.025 to 163.275 MHz. The FM-4721 can be powered with 10.8 to 15.6 VDC power and has a switchable RF output power of 1 Watt or 25 Watts.

The FM-4721 operates on all currently allocated marine channels. Channels are switchable for use with USA, International, or Canadian regulations. Emergency CH16 can be immediately selected by pressing the **16/9** key. NOAA weather channels (where available) can also be accessed immediately by pressing the **CLR/WX** key.

The FM-4721 incorporates DSC (Digital Selective Calling) Class D facilities that comply with ITU-R M.493-12 (DSC Class D). Class D operation provides continuous watch on DSC CH70 even if the radio is receiving a call.

The main features are

- Class D DSC (Digital Selective Calling) with Distress, Individual and All Ship calls
- · Navigation information (LAT/LON, SOG, COG) shown on the display*
- · Navigate to a DSC Distress Position*
- Automatic DSC Position Poll request to up to four separate vessels
- · Menu system with user-programmable soft keys
- · Dedicated channel 70 receiver for continuous DSC watch
- Submersible IPX-7 rating (1 meter for 30 minutes)
- 30 Watt PA/Loudhailer (option) with pre-programmed fog signals and listenback facility
- ClearVoice noise-cancelling microphone with channel selector and 16/9 key
- Handset HS-4721 can operate as a remote station
- · Intercom facility between Handset and Radio
- · Optional Bluetooth Adapter Unit enables communication with bluetooth devices
- Optional Voice Scrambler provides secure communications with other so equipped FM-4721
- *: Requires external GPS navigator.

Version No.

1.** (** denotes minor modifications.)

With regards to CE declarations, please refer to our website (www.furuno.com), for further information on RoHS conformity declarations.

SYSTEM CONFIGURATION



1. GETTING STARTED

1.1 Emergency Call (CH16)

CH16 is known as the Hail and Distress Channel. An emergency may be defined as a threat to life or property. In such instances, be sure the transceiver is on and set to CH16. Then use the following procedure:

- 1. Press the microphone's push-to-talk (PTT) switch and say "**Mayday, Mayday, Mayday.** This is XXXXX, XXXXX, XXXXX" (your vessel's name).
- 2. Then repeat once: "Mayday, XXXXX" (your vessel's name).
- 3. Report your position in latitude/longitude, or give a true or magnetic bearing (state which) to a well-known landmark such as a navigation aid or geographic feature such as an island or harbor entry.
- 4. Explain the nature of your distress (sinking, collision, aground, fire, piracy, lifethreatening injury, etc.).
- 5. State the kind of assistance you desire (pumps, medical aid, etc.).
- 6. Report the number of persons aboard and condition of any injured.
- 7. Estimate the present seaworthiness and condition of your vessel.
- 8. Give your vessel's description: length, design (power or sail), color and other distinguishing marks. The total transmission should not exceed one minute.
- 9. End the message by saying "OVER". Release the microphone switch and listen.
- 10. If there is no answer, repeat the above procedure. If there is still no response, try another channel.

Note: The FM-4721 has DSC Distress calling, which can send a distress call digitally to all ships with compatible DSC radios. Refer to chapter 3 "DIGITAL SELECTIVE CALLING".

1.2 How to Call Another Vessel (CH16 or CH9)

CH16 (or CH9, depending on area) should be used as the calling channel for initial contact with another vessel. However, its primary purpose is for emergency communications and should be monitored at all times when not using other channels.

It is monitored by Coast Guard stations in all countries and other vessels.

The use of CH16 should be limited to making initial contact only. Calling should not exceed one minute, but may be repeated at two-minute intervals.

Prior to making contact with another vessel, refer to the channel charts in the Appendix and select an appropriate channel (working channel) for use after initial contact. Monitor the proposed channel to ensure you won't be interrupting other traffic and then go back to CH16 to make your initial call.

When channel 16 is clear, state the name of the vessel you wish to call and then "**this is**" followed by the name of your vessel and your vessel callsign. When the other vessel returns your call, immediately request another channel by saying "**go to**", the num-

ber of the other channel, and "**over**". Then switch to the new channel. When the new channel is not busy, call the vessel.

After a transmission, say "**over**", and release the **PTT** (Push-To-Talk) switch on the microphone. When all communication with the vessel is completed, end the last transmission by stating your callsign and the word "**out**". Note that it is not necessary to state your callsign with each transmission, only at the beginning and end of the contact.

Remember to return to CH16 when not using another channel. Some radios automatically monitor CH16 even when set to other channels or when scanning.

1.3 How to Make Telephone Calls

To make a radiotelephone call, use a channel designated for this purpose. The fastest way to learn which channels are used for radiotelephone traffic is to ask at a local marina. Channels available for such traffic are designated **Public Correspondence** channels on the channel charts in the Appendix. Some examples for USA use are Channels 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 84, 85, 86, and 87. Call the marine operator and identify yourself by your vessel's name. The marine operator then asks you how you want to pay for the call (telephone credit card, collect, etc.) and then link your radio transmission to the telephone lines.

The marine telephone company managing the VHF channels you are using may charge a link-up fee in addition to the cost of the call.

1.4 Channels 13 and 67 (USA channel group only)

Channel 13 is used at docks and bridges and by vessels maneuvering in port. Messages on this channel must concern navigation only, such as meeting and passing in restricted waters.

Channel 67 is used for navigational traffic between vessels.

By regulation, power is normally limited to 1 Watt on these channels. Your radio is programmed to automatically reduce power to this limit on these channels. However, in emergency situations it may be necessary to temporarily use a higher power. See page 2-1 (**H/L** key) for how to temporarily override the low-power limit on these two channels. 2. OPERATION

2.1 Controls

This section describes the controls of the Transceiver Unit (including the optional microphone) and the Handset HS-4721.

2.1.1 Transceiver Unit



No.	Control	Description
1	VOL (Volume Control Knob)	 Adjust the audio volume level. Turn this knob clockwise to increase the audio volume level. Control the listenback volume in the PA or Fog mode. Note: Turn off the set with minimum volume. When you turn on the set, adjust the volume to a comfortable level. This allows you to hear distress calls and raw voice clearly.
2	SQL (Squelch Control)	Adjust this control clockwise to set the point at which random noise on the channel does not activate the audio circuits but a received signal does. This point is called the squelch threshold. Further adjustment of the squelch control may degrade reception of wanted transmissions.
3	Soft keys	The three soft keys functions can be customized on the Setup Menu. See section 4.12 "Soft Keys". When one of the soft keys is pressed briefly, all the functions of the soft keys appear above their associated keys.
4	16/9	 Momentary press: Recall CH16 from any channel location. Long press: Recall CH9. (CH9 is used in some parts of the world as an alternative calling channel to CH16.) Press the key again to return to the previously selected working channel.
5	H/L	Toggle between 25 W (High) and 1 W (Low) power. When the TX output power is set to "Low" while the transceiver is on channel 13 or 67, the output power is temporarily switched from "Low" to "High" power until the PTT switch is released. The H/L key does not function on transmit inhibited and low power only channels.
6	CALL/MENU	 Momentary press: Open the [DSC Menu]. Long press: Open the [Setup Menu].

No.	Control	Description	
7	СН	 Select channels and select menu items. The ▲ and ▼ keys on the microphone can also be used to select channels and menu items. In the PA or Fog mode, change the output volume of the connected horn speaker. 	
8	(POWER)	Power the transceiver on and off. To turn the transceiver on, press and hold this key until the LCD turns on. To turn it off, press and hold this key until the LCD turns off. When the power is turned on, the transceiver is set to the last-selected channel.	
9	MIC connector	Connector for optionally supplied noise-canceling speaker microphone.	
10	1	When in the radio mode, this key directly inputs the digit "1" in a channel number.	
	2/MEM	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "2" in a channel number. FUNC key→ 2/MEM key: Memorize the selected channel into the transceiver scan memory for scanning. Repeat the same procedure (FUNC → 2/MEM) to delete the channel from the scan memory. See section 2.10 "Scanning" for details. 	
	3/SCAN	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "3" in a channel number. FUNC key→3/SCAN key: Start and stop scanning on programmed channels. This function depends on scanning type setting. See section 2.10 "Scanning" for details. 	
	4/DIM	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "4" in a channel number. FUNC key→4/DIM key: Access the [LCD Dimmer] menu. See section 2.7 "Backlight Adjustment" for details. 	
	5/IC	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "5" in a channel number. FUNC key→5/IC key: Activate the intercom mode between the radio and the Handset. See section 2.13 "Intercom Operation" for details. 	
	6/DW	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "6" in a channel number. FUNC key→6/DW key: Scan for voice communications on the priority channel and another selected channel until a signal is received on either channel (Dual Watch). See section 2.9 "Dual Watch (To CH16)" for details. 	
	7/SQRM	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "7" in a channel number. FUNC key→7/SQRM key: Operate the Voice Scrambler function when the optional FVP-42 Voice Scrambler Unit is installed. See section 2.15 "Voice Scrambler (option)" for details. 	
	8/PA	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "8" in a channel number. FUNC key→ 8/PA key: Operate the 30 Watt PA function. See section 2.12 "PA HAIL, FOG HORN Operation" for details. 	
	9/FOG	 Radio mode: Directly input the digit "9" in a channel number. FUNC key→9/FOG key: Operate the Fog Horn function. See section 2.12 "PA HAIL, FOG HORN Operation" for details. 	
	0	In the radio mode, directly input the digit "0" in a channel number.	
	CLR/WX	 Cancel the menu selection and/or key input. Press and hold the key to recall the previously selected NOAA weather channel from any channel. Press and hold the key again to revert to the previously selected working channel. 	
	ENT	Confirm the menu selection and/or key input.	
	FUNC	Activate the "Alternate" key function.	
11	DISTRESS	Send a DSC Distress Alert. See section 3.3.1 "How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert".	



No.	Control	Description
12	PTT switch (Push-To-Talk Switch)	Radio mode, PTT switch pressed : The transmitter is enabled for voice communications with another vessel. PA mode : Press the PTT switch to amplify your voice over a PA horn. HS-4721 Handset connected and intercom mode enabled : Press the PTT switch to enable voice communications between the FM-4721 and the HS-4721.
13	Microphone	The microphone has Clear Voice Noise Reduction Technology, which reduces the amount of background (wind, engine) noise transmitted. Note: Position your mouth about 1.5 cm away from the microphone hole and speak in a normal voice.
14	Microphone speaker	Talk into the speaker to transmit your voice.
15	▲, ▼	The \blacktriangle and \triangledown on the microphone function the same as the CH knob on the front panel of the transceiver.
16	16/9	 Momentary press: Recall CH16 from any channel location. Long press: Recall CH9. (CH9 is used in some parts of the world as an alternative calling channel to CH16.) Press the key again to revert to the previously selected working channel.

2.1.2 Handset HS-4721

The HS-4721 Handset remotely operates all VHF, DSC, setup menus, and PA/Fog modes. The HS-4721's operation is same as FM-4721 except the receiver audio volume setting and squelch level setting. The HS-4721 is supplied with 7 m of routing cable and can be extended up to 21 m using three 7 m extension cables model CT-100. The Intercom feature can be used between the HS-4721 and the FM-4721. In addition, speaker wires are supplied at the panel mount of the routing cable to connect an external speaker. This can be useful when it is difficult to hear voice over the handset, because of noisy environment.



No.	Control	Description
1		Press and hold down this key to turn the transceiver and Handset on or off.
2	PTT switch (Push-To-Talk Switch)	Push this key to enable the transmitter.
3	DISTRESS	Transmit a DSC Distress Alert. See chapter 3.
4	Display	Full dot matrix display.
5	Soft keys	These three key's functions can be customized by the [Setup Menu] mode. When press one of these key briefly, the key functions appear at the bottom of the display. See section 4.12.2 Soft Keys.
6	16/9	 First press: CH16 is immediately selected. Second press: Recall the last selected channel. Press and hold: Select channel 9.
▲, ▼ These keys are used to select channels, ac level, and to select DSC calls, DSC setup a		These keys are used to select channels, adjust the volume and squelch level, and to select DSC calls, DSC setup and Radio setup function.
	VOL/SQ (Volume Con- trol / Squelch Control)	 First press: Volume adjustment mode Second press: Squelch adjustment mode Third press: Exit adjustment mode When in volume or squelch mode, press the ▲ or ▼ keys to adjust the level.
	H/L	Toggle between high and low power. When the H/L key is pressed while the transceiver is on CH13 or CH67, the power is temporarily switched from LO to HI until the PTT switch is released. The H/L key is inoperative on transmission inhibited and low-power only channels.
	CALL/MENU	 Press this key to access the [DSC MENU]. Press and hold this key to access the [SETUP MENU].
	FUNC	Press this key to activate the Alternate key function.
7	See respective d	escription on page 2-2.
8	Speaker	The internal speaker is located here.
9	Microphone	The internal ClearVoice Noise Canceling mic is located here. When transmitting, position your mouth about 1.5 centimeter away from the small mic hole. Speak slowly and clearly into the microphone.

2.2 Reception

- 1. After the transceiver has been installed, ensure that the power supply and antenna are properly connected.
- 2. Press and hold the **PWR** key until the radio turns on.
- 3. Rotate the SQL knob fully counterclockwise. This state is known as "squelch off".
- 4. Rotate the **VOL** knob clockwise until noise or audio from the speaker is at a comfortable level.
- 5. Rotate the **SQL** knob clockwise until the random noise just disappears. This state is known as the "squelch threshold".
- 6. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a channel. Refer to the channel chart in the Appendix for available channels.
- 7. The numeric keys on the front panel may be used to directly select channels. For example, to select CH68:
 - 1) Press the 6/DW key.
 - 2) Press the 8/PA key.
 - 3) Press the **ENT** key.

In the USA and Canadian modes, press and hold down the **0** key to select the "A" channel. For example, to select CH22A:

- 1) Press the 2/MEM key.
- 2) Press the 2/MEM key.
- 3) Press the **0** key until "A" appears to the right of the channel number.
- 4) Press the ENT key.
- 8. When a message is received, adjust the volume to the desired listening level. The **EUSY** indicator on the display indicates communications is being received.



2.3 Transmission

- 1. Do steps 1 through 6 in section 2.2 "Reception".
- 2. Before transmitting, monitor the channel to ensure it is clear.
- Press the PTT (push-to-talk) switch on the microphone. The TX indicator appears on the display.
- 4. Speak slowly and clearly into the microphone.
- 5. When the transmission is finished, release the **PTT** switch.

Note: This is a noise-canceling microphone. Position the slot labeled "MIC" within 1.5 cm from your mouth for optimum performance.



2.4 Transmit Timeout Timer (TOT)

When the **PTT** switch on the microphone is pressed continuously, transmit time is limited to five minutes. This limits unintentional transmissions due to a stuck **PTT** switch. About 10 seconds before automatic transmitter shutdown, a warning beep sounds from the speaker(s). The transceiver automatically goes to the RX mode, even if the **PTT** switch is continually held down. To transmit again, the **PTT** switch must first be released and then pressed again.

CAUTION: The heatsink can get hot enough to cause fire or burn injury when the TX to RX ration goes lower than 1:9.

2.5 Simplex/Duplex Channel Use

Refer to the VHF Marine Channel Chart in the Appendix for instructions on use of simplex and duplex channels.

Note: All channels are factory-programmed in accordance with FCC (USA), Industry Canada (Canada), and International regulations. Mode of operation cannot be altered from simplex to duplex or vice-versa.

2.6 International, Canada, and USA Mode

To change the channel Group call from International to Canada or USA:

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [CH Group] then press the [SELECT] soft key.

Group 1:USA	up-
GROUP 2: INTL Group 3: CAN	
ENT	QUIT

 Rotate the CH knob to select a channel Group [USA], [INTL], or [CAN (CANADA)] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.

Note: When in INTL channel group, inland waterways channel group can be selected from the ATIS menu by switching ATIS to ON. See section 6.2.

5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

2.7 Backlight Adjustment

Adjust the display illumination for viewing in sunlight or darkness.

- 1. Press the **FUNC** key followed by the **4/DIM** key to show the [Dimmer] menu.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired level. When [OFF] is selected, the backlight is turned off.
- 3. Press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected level, and return to radio operation.



2.8 NOAA Weather Channels

- 1. To receive a NOAA (National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration) weather channel, press and hold the **CLR/WX** key for two seconds on any channel. The transceiver chooses the last selected weather channel.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a different NOAA weather channel.
- 3. To exit from the NOAA weather channels, press and hold the **CLR/WX** key. The transceiver returns to the channel in use before the weather channel.



2.8.1 NOAA weather alert

In the event of extreme weather disturbances, such as storms and hurricanes, the NOAA sends a weather alert accompanied by a 1050 Hz tone and subsequent weather report on one of the NOAA weather channels. When the Weather Alert feature is enabled (see section 5.6 "Weather Alert Setup"), the transceiver is capable of receiving this alert by doing the following:

- Program NOAA weather channels into the transceiver's memory for scanning. Follow the same procedure as for regular channels under paragraph 2.10.3 "Memory scanning (M-SCAN)".
- 2. Press the FUNC key followed by the 3/SCAN key to start memory scanning.
- 3. The programmed NOAA weather channels are scanned along with the regularprogrammed channels. However, scanning does not stop on a normal weather broadcast unless a NOAA alert is received.
- 4. When an alert is received on a NOAA weather channel, scanning stops and the transceiver emits a loud beep to alert the user of a NOAA broadcast.
- 5. Press the **CLR/WX** key to stop the alert and receive the weather report.

Note 1: If the **CLR/WX** key is not pressed the alert sounds for five minutes and then the weather report is received.

Note 2: While listening to a weather channel, the radio can decode a weather alert and sound an alarm.

2.8.2 NOAA weather alert test

NOAA tests the alert system every Wednesday between 11AM and 1PM UTC time. To test the FM-4721's NOAA weather feature (at the above-mentioned time) follow the procedure in paragraph 2.8.1 "NOAA weather alert" and confirm that the alert sounds.

2.9 Dual Watch (To CH16)

Dual watch scans two channels for communications. One channel is a normal VHF channel and the other is CH16. When a signal is received on the normal channel, the radio briefly switches between the normal channel and CH16 to look for a transmission. If the radio receives communications on CH16, the radio stops and listens to CH16 until communication ends and then starts dual watch scan again.

- 1. Adjust the SQL knob until the background noise just disappears.
- 2. Select the channel you wish to dual watch with CH16.
- Press the FUNC key followed by the 6/DW key. The display alternately scans between CH16 and the channel that was selected

in step 2. If a transmission is received on the channel selected in step 2, the FM-4721 starts dual watch on CH16.



4. To stop dual watch, press the FUNC key followed by the 6/DW key.

Note: The priority channel may be changed from CH16 to another channel. Refer to section 5.5 "Priority CH".

2.10 Scanning

Allows the user to select the scan type: Memory scan or Priority scan. [Memory Scan] scans the channels that were programmed into memory. [Priority Scan] scans the channels programmed in memory with the priority channel.

2.10.1 How to select the scan type

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Scan Type] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Priority Scan] or [Memory Scan] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected scan type.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

-Setup Menu- Daily Test General Setup CH FUNCTION SETUP DSC Setup MMSI Setup ATIS Setup SELECT QUIT	
-CH Function Setup- CH Group Scan Memory CH SCAN TYPE Scan Resume Priority CH WX Alert SELECT QUIT	
-Scan Type- PRIORITY SCAN Memory Scan	

2.10.2 How to program the scan memory

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Function Setup].
- 3. Press the [SELECT] soft key, then rotate the **CH** knob to select [Scan Memory CH] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a desired channel to be scanned, then press the [ADD] soft key. [MEM] icon appears on the display, which indicates the channel has been programmed to the scan channel.
- 5. Repeat step 4 for all the desired channels to be scanned.
- 6. To delete a channel from the list, select the channel then press the [DELETE] soft key. "MEM" disappears from the display.
- 7. When you have completed your selection, press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

Note: You may add/delete the current channel to/from the scan list by pressing the **FUNC** key followed by the **2/MEM** key.

2.10.3 Memory scanning (M-SCAN)

- 1. Adjust the **SQL** knob until background noise just disappears.
- Press the FUNC key followed by the 3/SCAN key. "M-SCAN" appears on the display. Scanning starts from the lowest to the highest programmed channels and



- 3. The channel number blinks during scanning.
- 4. To stop scanning, press the **16/9** or **CLR/WX** key, or the **FUNC** key followed by the **3/SCAN** key.



-Scan 21 MFM	Memory	CH-
20 19 MEM		
18 17		
16 MEM		V
	DELETE	QUIT

BUSY 25W INTL M-SCAN

SOG: 25мрн COG: 123° т 23° 56. 890N

123°56.980E

TELEPHONI



2.10.4 Priority scanning (P-SCAN)

In the default setting, CH16 is set as the priority channel. (See section 5.5 for how to set priority channel.) You may change the priority channel from 16 to another channel as shown below.

- Adjust the SQL knob until background noise disappears.
- Press the FUNC key followed by the 3/SCAN key. "P-SCAN" appears on the display. Scanning starts between the memorized channels and preset channels



(described in next section) and the priority channel. The priority channel is scanned after each programmed channel.

3. To stop scanning, press the **16/9** or **CLR/WX** key, or the **FUNC** key followed by the **3/SCAN** key.



2.11 How to Preset Channels (0-7): Instant Access

Eight preset channels can be programmed for instant access. Press one of the soft keys then press the [PRESET] soft key to activate the user assigned channel bank.

Before beginning the instant access operation, assign the PRESET command into the one of the programmable keys. See section 4.12 "Soft Keys".

2.11.1 How to preset channels

- 1. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the channel to be programmed.
- Press one of the soft keys momentarily then press and hold the [PRESET] soft key until the channel number blinks.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired preset channel ([SET 0] - [SET 7]) you wish to program. When you recall a preset channel (for example, SET 1) that is already programmed, the operating channel number (for example, 6) is shown to the right of the preset channel number.
- 4. Press the [ADD] soft key momentarily to program the channel into the preset channel.
- 5. Repeat steps 1 through 4 to program the desired channels into preset channels 0 to 7.





2.11.2 How to activate preset channels

- 1. Press one of the soft keys momentarily then press the [PRESET] soft key to recall the preset channel. The indication "P SET" above the channel number.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the desired preset channel (0 to 7). The preset channel number appears ([P SET0] [P SET7]) while selecting the preset channel.
- Press one of the soft keys momentarily then press the [PRESET] soft key again to return to the last selected "regular" channel. The indication "P SET" disappears from the display.

2.11.3 How to delete preset channels

- 1. Recall the preset channel as directed in paragraph 2.11.2.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the preset channel to delete.
- Press one of the soft keys momentarily. Press and hold the [PRESET] soft key until the indication "SET(0-7)" and the channel number flash.
- 4. Press the [DELETE] soft key.







2.12 PA HAIL, FOG HORN Operation

The FM-4721 has a 30W Loudhailer that can be used with any 4-ohm PA horn. FU-RUNO offers a small and a large PA HAIL horn, the 220SW and 240SW, respectively. In the PA HAIL mode, the PA speaker listens back (acts as a microphone and sends sound to the front panel speaker and the speaker microphone) through the PA horn, which provides two-way communications through the PA horn.

PA HAIL mode: Allows the transceiver to be used as a Loudhailer when an optional speaker is installed. The PA HAIL mode has a listen-back feature that provides two-way communication through the PA HAIL Speaker.

FOG HORN mode: Selected signal (see page 2-13) is transmitted through the PA HAIL speaker. When the Fog horn, Bells or Whistle signal is not being outputted the FM-4721 listens back through the connected PA horn.

Note: In the PA HAIL or FOG HORN mode, the FM-4721 receives communications on the last-selected VHF channel before entering into the PA HAIL or FOG HORN mode and receive DSC calls.

2.12.1 PA HAIL mode

- 1. Press the **FUNC** key followed by the **8/PA** key to activate the PA Hail mode. The indication "PA" appears on the display.
- 2. Press the **PTT** switch to speak through the HAIL/PA speaker.



- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to control the AF output level. The AF output level can be set from 0 to 30 watts.
- 4. Rotate the VOL knob to adjust the listenback volume.
- 5. To exit the PA HAIL mode, press the [QUIT] soft key or **CLR/WX** key.

2.12.2 FOG HORN mode

There are eight signals to select from: [Underway], [Stop], [Sail], [Tow], [Aground], [Anchor], [Horn], and [Siren].

- 1. Press the **FUNC** key followed by the **9/FOG** key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select one of the eight functions described above. (For the timing specification for each signal, see the International Regulations for Preventing Collisions at Sea.)
- 3. Press the [ENT] soft key.
- On the [Horn] and [Siren] modes, press the PTT switch to activate the tone through the HAIL/PA speaker. Rotate the CH knob to control the AF output level, which can be set from 0 to 30 watts.
- 5. If the fog signal is not output, rotate the **VOL** knob to adjust the listenback volume.
- To exit the FOG HORN mode, press the [QUIT] soft key or CLR/WX key.

FOG HORN timing chart

Туре	Pattern	Usage
[Underway]	One 5-second blast every 120 seconds.	Motor vessel underway and making way.
[Stop]	Two 5-second blasts (separated by 2 seconds) every 120 seconds.	Motor vessel underway but stopped (not making way).
[Sail]	One 5-second blast followed by two 1-second blasts (separated by 2 seconds) every 120 seconds.	Sailing vessel underway, fish- ing vessel (underway or an- chored), vessel not undercom- mand, a vessel restricted in her ability to maneuver (underway or at anchor), or a vessel towing or pushing another ahead.
[Tow]	One 5-second blast followed by three 1-second blasts (separated by 2 seconds) every 120 seconds.	Vessel is being towed (manned).
[Aground]	One 11-second ring every 60 seconds.	Vessel is aground.
[Anchor]	One 5-second ring every 60 seconds.	Vessel is at anchor.
[Horn]	Varying pitch (yelp) tone while pressing the PTT switch.	
[Siren]	Passing signal while the PTT switch is pressed.	









2.13 Intercom Operation

The intercom function is available if your radiotelephone is equipped with two HS-4721 Handsets.

2.13.1 Communication

- 1. Press the **FUNC** key followed by the **5/IC** key to enable the intercom mode.
- Use the CH knob to select the intercom to use ([RAM1], [RAM2], or [ALL]), then press the ENT key. When the intercom mode is enabled, "Intercom" is displayed on the radio and the HS-4721.



3. Press the **PTT** switch on the radio. [Talk] appears on the display.



FM-4721's PTT switch is pressed



HS-4721's PTT switch is pressed

Note: A warning beep sounds when the radio's **PTT** and the Handsets' **PTT** are pushed at the same time.

- 4. Speak slowly and clearly into the microphone. Hold the microphone about 1.5 cm away from your mouth.
- 5. When finished, release the **PTT** switch.
- 6. Press the [QUIT] soft key or the **CLR/WX** key to exit the intercom mode and revert to the radio mode.

2. OPERATION

2.13.2 How to call on the Intercom

Press the [BELL] soft key on either the radio or a Handset to generate a calling beep at the station called.



2.14 Bluetooth Operation (option)

Installation of the optional BU-1 Bluetooth Adapter Unit enables the FM-4721 to send/ receive voice messages with a BH-2A Bluetooth Headset via wireless links. When the BH-2A is connected, [Bluetooth] appears in the [General Setup Menu].

2.14.1 Pairing

Before you use the BH-2A Bluetooth Headset, pair the BH-2A Bluetooth Headset and the FM-4721 as follows:

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [General Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Bluetooth] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [PAIRING] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Bring the BH-2A Bluetooth Headset close to the FM-4721, then press and hold the **POWER** switch on the BH-2A until the LED indicator blinks red and blue alternately.
- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to initiate the pairing.
- When the BH-2A is correctly recognized (approx. 20 to 30 seconds) by the FM-4721, the BH-2A's LED indicator blinks blue, and "Pairing Succeeded" appears on the display of the FM-4721.
- 8. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to exit this menu and return to radio mode.



Note: When the BH-2A is correctly recognized by the FM-4721, the icon appears at the top right corner on the display.

2.14.2 Operation

1. When the BH-2A is correctly recognized by the FM-

4721, 🛊 icon appears on the display of the FM-4721 and the LED indicator of the BH-2A blinks blue.

- Adjust the receiver audio level using the VOLUME(+)/ VOLUME(-) switches on the BH-2A.
- 3. Press the **PTT** switch on the BH-2A to transmit. Release the **PTT** switch to return to receive.
- 4. The communication range between the BH-2A and FM-4721 is around 7 m (21 ft). If you move out of range, a beep sounds from the BH-2A to alert you. If you move back into range, the BH-2A beeps to alert you that you are back within range.
- 5. When the battery voltage of the BH-2A is low, the following occurs:
 - a) The LED blinks red and blue alternately.
 - b) A beep sounds from the BH-2A.
 - c) The 😦 icon on the FM-4721 blinks rapidly.

Charge the BH-2A battery with the CD-40 Charger Cradle.

2.14.3 VOX feature

The VOX (Voice Operation Transmission) feature provides automatic transmit/receive switching based on voice input to the microphone. With the VOX feature enabled, you do not need to press the **PTT** switch in order to transmit, and it is not necessary to use a VOX headset in order to utilize VOX operation.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [General Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Bluetooth] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [VOX FUNCTION] then press the [SELECT] soft key. Rotate the CH knob to select the desired VOX function then press the [ENT] soft key.
 [Off]: Disable the VOX feature.
 [High]: Activate the VOX feature (VOX gain: High).

[Low]: Activate the VOX feature (VOX gain: Low).

-Bluetooth-VOX FUNCTION Save Function Pin Code Pairing SELECT OFF High Low ENT QUIT

5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to exit this menu and return to radio mode.



2.14.4 Battery saver

Enable/Disable the battery saver of the optional BH-2A Bluetooth Headset.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [General Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Bluetooth] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Save Function] then press the [SELECT] soft key.



 Select [On] or [Off] then press the [ENT] soft key. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to exit this menu and return to radio operation.

[On]: Activates the Battery Saver in the BH-2A. If there is no signal or key activity for 20 seconds, the Battery Saver automatically puts the BH-2A to sleep, to conserve battery life. When a signal is received or the **PTT** switch is pressed, the BH-2A becomes active. Furthermore, if there is no signal or key activity for 10 minutes, the BH-2A turns off automatically.

[Off]: Disables the Battery Saver in the BH-2A.

2.15 Voice Scrambler (option)

The optional Voice Scrambler FVP-42 is a 32-code voice scrambler (VS) that installs in the transceiver, and provides private communications with other FM-4721 equipped with the FVP-42. Contact your dealer to have a FVP-42 installed.

- Rotate the CH knob to select the channel to scramble. Note: CH16 and 70 can not operate the voice scrambler.
- Press the FUNC key then press and hold down the 7/ SQRM key until the [Scrambler] menu appears.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to set the desired scrambler code. The scrambler code can be set from 0 to 31.
- 4. Press the [ENT] soft key to save the scrambler code and return to the radio mode. "VS" and scrambler number (0 - 31) appear on the display.
- 5. Press the **FUNC** key followed by the **7/SQRM** key to activate the voice scrambler.
- 6. Monitor the channel before transmitting.
- 7. To disable the voice scrambler, press the **FUNC** key followed by the **7/SQRM** key again. VS and scrambler number disappear from the display.



3. DIGITAL SELECTIVE CALLING

3.1 General

This radio is designed to generate a digital maritime distress and safety call to facilitate search and rescue. To be effective as a safety device, this equipment must be used only within communication range of a shore-based VHF marine channel 70 distress and safety watch system. The range of the signal may vary, but under normal conditions it should be approximately 20 nautical miles.

Digital Selective Calling (hereafter abbreviated as DSC) is a semi-automated method of establishing a radio call. DSC has been designated by the International Maritime Organization (IMO) as an international standard for establishing VHF, MF and HF radio calls. It has also been designated as a part of the Global Maritime Distress and Safety System (GMDSS). DSC replaces aural watches on distress frequencies and announces routine and urgent maritime safety information broadcasts.

This system allows mariners to instantly transmit a distress call with GPS position to the Coast Guard and other vessels within range of the transmission. DSC also allows mariners to initiate or receive distress, urgency, safety, routine, position request, position transmit and group calls to or from another vessel equipped with a DSC transceiver.

3.2 Maritime Mobile Service Identity (MMSI)

3.2.1 What is an MMSI?

An MMSI is a nine-digit number used on marine transceivers capable of using DSC. This number is used like a telephone number to selectively call other vessels.

Note: This vessel's MMSI must be entered into the radio to use the DSC functions.

3.2.2 How to enter your MMSI number



- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [MMSI Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Enter your MMSI number (nine digits) by the numeric keys (**0** to **9/FOG** key). If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected then press the correct numeric key.
- 4. After you have entered the MMSI number, press and hold the [ENT] soft key. The message "Input Again" appears.
- 5. Enter the MMSI number again then press and hold the [ENT] soft key again to save the MMSI number.
- 6. Press the [OK] soft key to return to radio operation.

Note: To view your MMSI number, to ensure it is correct, do steps 1 to 2.

3.3 DSC Distress Alert

The FM-4721 is capable of transmitting and receiving DSC distress alerts. The FM-4721 may be connected to a GPS receiver to also transmit the latitude and longitude position of the vessel together with the DSC distress alert.

3.3.1 How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert

Note: To transmit a DSC Distress Alert, an MMSI number must be registered in the transceiver. Refer to section 3.2.2 for how to enter your MMSI number.

How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert without specifying nature of distress

- 1. Lift the red spring-loaded DISTRESS cover.
- 2. Press and hold the **DISTRESS** key (approx. 3 seconds). The unit beeps and the display counts down the time remaining until the distress alert is sent. The backlight of the display and numeric keys flash while the display counts down the time remaining.
- 3. After the distress signal is sent, the transceiver watches for a transmission between CH16 and CH70 until an acknowledgment signal is received. The display shows "Waiting for ACK" while the equipment waits for acknowledgement.
- 4. If no acknowledgment is received, the distress alert is repeated in 3.5 4.5-minute intervals, until a DSC acknowledgment is received.

Note: To turn off the distress alarm until the radio retransmits the distress call, press the **16/9** key.

-User MMSI- Input User MMSI
ENT BACK QUIT
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI 123456789
ENT BACK QUIT
-User MMSI-
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI *******
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI ********* Input Again
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI ********* Input Again ENT BACK QUIT
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI ******** Input Again <u>ENT BACK QUIT</u> -User MMSI-
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI ********* Input Again ENT BACK QUIT -User MMSI- Stored ID
-User MMSI- Input User MMSI ********* Input Again <u>ENT BACK QUIT</u> -User MMSI- Stored ID 123456789

!DISTRESS ALERT! Nature of Undesignated Position: 23°56 890N		
123°56.980E POS Time: 10:00		
Time for 3 sec		

Natu Pos POS	DISTRESS ALERT! re of:Undesignated ition: 23°56.890N 123°56.980E Time: 10:00
	Transmitting

!DISTRESS ALERT!
Nature of:Undesignated
Position: 23°56.890N
123°56.980E
POS Time: 10:00
TX in: 02:25
Waiting for ACK
PAUSE CANCEL

 When you receive the DSC distress acknowledgment, a distress alarm sounds and CH16 is automatically selected. The display shows the MMSI of the ship responding to your distress and the applicable acknowledgement message.



"Received DISTRESS ACK": Acknowledgment signal is received. "Received RELAY ACK": Relay acknowledgment signal is received from another vessel or coast station.

- 6. Press the **PTT** switch and state your name, vessel name, number of persons on board and the distress situation, then say over. Wait for a reply from the acknowledging ship.
- 7. To conclude both voice communications and the distress alert sequence, press the [OK] soft key.

How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert with nature of distress specified

The FM-4721 is capable of transmitting a DSC Distress Alert with the following "Nature of Distress" categories: Undesignated, Fire, Flooding, Collision, Grounding, Capsizing, Sinking, Adrift, Abandoning, Piracy, and MOB (Man Overboard).

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Distress Alert MSG] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Press the [NATURE] soft key to show the [!NATURE OF!] menu.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired nature of distress category then press the [SELECT] soft key. For example, select Fire.
- 5. Lift the red spring-loaded DISTRESS cover.
- 6. Press and hold the **DISTRESS** key (approx. 3 seconds). The unit beeps and the display counts down the time remaining until the distress alert is sent. The backlight of the display and numeric keys flash while the display counts down the time remaining.
- 7. When the distress signal is sent, the transceiver watches for a transmission between CH16 and CH70 until an acknowledgment signal is received. The display shows "Waiting for ACK" while the equipment waits for acknowledgement. If no acknowledgment is

received, the DSC Distress Alert call is repeated in 3.5 - 4.5-minute intervals until an acknowledgment is received.

Note: To turn off the distress alarm until the radio retransmits the distress call, press the **16/9** key.

 When you receive the DSC distress acknowledgment, a distress alarm sounds and CH16 is automatically selected. The display shows the MMSI of the ship responding to your distress and the applicable acknowledgement message.

"Received DISTRESS ACK": Acknowledgment signal is received.









"Received RELAY ACK": Relay acknowledgment signal is received from another vessel or coast station.

- Press the PTT switch and state your name, vessel name, number of persons on board and the distress situation, then say over. Wait for a reply from the acknowledging ship.
- 10. To conclude both voice communications and the distress alert sequence, press the [OK] soft key.

How to transmit a DSC Distress Alert with manual position of input

If no position data is available at the time of distress, insert the latitude and longitude position of your vessel manually in the DSC Distress Alert.

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Distress Alert MSG] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Press the [POS/TM] soft key.
- 4. Enter the latitude and longitude of your vessel and your local time in 24-hour notation, using the numeric keys (0 to 9/FOG key).
 To select North (N) press the 6/DW key, South (S) press the 7/SQRM key, East (E) press the 3/SCAN key, or West (W) press the 9/FOG key. You may backspace the cursor by pressing the [BACK] soft key.
- 5. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key for two seconds to save the position entered.
- 6. Lift the red spring-loaded DISTRESS cover.
- 7. Press and hold the **DISTRESS** key (approx. 3 seconds). The unit beeps and the display counts down the time remaining until the distress alert is sent. The backlight of the display and numeric keys flash while the display counts down the time remaining.
- 8. When the distress signal is sent, the transceiver "watches" for a transmission between CH16 and CH70 until an acknowledgment signal is received. The display shows "Waiting for ACK" while the equipment waits for acknowledgement. If no acknowledgment is received, the distress call is repeated in 3.5 - 4.5minute intervals until an acknowledgment is received.

IDISTRESS ALERT! Nature of:Undesignated Position: _______ POS Time: --:--Time for 3 sec | Press [POS/TM] soft key. -POS/POS Time Input-Position: -POS Time: --:--[UTC] ENT BACK QUIT Enter position and position time. -POS/POS Time Input-Position: 23°56.890N 123°56.980E POS Time: 10:00[UTC] ENT BACK QUIT IDISTRESS ALERT! Nature of:Undesignated Position: 23°56.890N 123°56.980E POS Time: 10:00 Time for 3 sec IDISTRESS ALERT! Nature of:Undesignated Position: 23°56.890N 123°56.980E POS Time: 10:00 Transmitting

Note: To turn off the distress alarm until the radio retransmits the distress call, press the **16/9** key.

 When you receive the DSC distress acknowledgment, a distress alarm sounds and CH16 is automatically selected. The display shows the MMSI of the ship responding to your distress and the applicable acknowledgement message.



"Received DISTRESS ACK": Acknowledgment signal is received.

"Received RELAY ACK": Relay acknowledgment signal is received from another vessel or coast station.

- 10. Press the **PTT** switch and state your name, vessel name, number of persons on board and the distress situation, then say over. Wait for a reply from the acknowledging ship.
- 11. To conclude both voice communications and the distress alert sequence, press the [OK] soft key.

How to pause a DSC Distress Alert

After a DSC Distress Alert is transmitted, the DSC Distress Alert is repeated in 3.5 - 4.5-minute intervals until the call is canceled by the user or until the radio is turned on and off again. The FM-4721 has a provision to suspend (Pause) the retransmitting of the distress call.

- After the distress alert is transmitted, the radio shows the topmost display at right.
 "TX in: 02:25" is the time remaining until the radio retransmits the DSC Distress Alert.
- 2. To suspend re-transmitting the DSC Distress Alert, press the [PAUSE] soft key.
- 3. To resume counting down to transmit the DSC Distress Alert, press the [RESUME] soft key.

How to cancel a DSC Distress Alert

If you sent a DSC Distress Alert unintentionally, you must transmit a message to other vessels to cancel that distress alert. Press the [CANCEL] soft key then press [YES] soft key.



3.3.2 How to receive a DSC Distress Alert

- 1. When a DSC Distress Alert is received, the emergency alarm sounds. Press any key to stop the alarm.
- 2. The display shows the position of the vessel in distress. To show additional information of the vessel in distress, rotate the **CH** knob clockwise (refer to the second display).

On the display, you should see three soft keys. [ACCEPT]: Accept the DSC Distress Alert call and switch to CH16.



[PAUSE]: Temporarily disable automatic switching to CH16.

[QUIT]: Quit the automatic switching to CH16 and revert to the last selected working channel.

Note 1: If no key is pressed within 10 seconds, the radio automatically selects CH16.

Note 2: You must continue to monitor CH16, as a coast station may require assistance in the rescue attempt.



ок

3.4 All Ships Call

The All Ships call function establishes contact with DSC-equipped vessels without having their MMSI in the directory. Also, priority for the call can be designated as urgency or safety.

Urgency Call: This type of call is used when a vessel may not truly be in distress, but has a potential problem that may lead to a distress situation. This call is the same as saying "Pan-Pan-Pan" on CH16.

Safety Call: Used to transmit boating safety information to other vessels. This message usually contains information about an overdue boat, debris in the water, loss of a navigation aid, or an important meteorological message. This call is the same as saying "Securite, Securite, Securite".

3.4.1 How to transmit an All Ships call

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [All Ships] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the nature of call ([Safety] or [Urgency]), then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the operating channel you want to communicate on then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the All Ships call.
- 6. After the All Ships call is transmitted, the transceiver switches to the selected channel.
- 7. Listen to the channel to make sure it is not busy, then key the microphone and say "Pan-Pan-Pan" or "Securite, Securite, Securite" depending on the priority of the call.
- 8. Press the [QUIT] soft key to exit the [All Ships Call] menu.



3.4.2 How to receive an All Ships call

- 1. When an All Ships call is received, an emergency alarm sounds. The display shows the MMSI of the vessel transmitting the All Ships call and the radio changes to the requested channel after 10 seconds.
- 2. Press any key to stop the alarm.
- 3. Monitor the requested channel until the all ships voice communication is completed.

The display shows three soft keys:

[ACCEPT]: Accept the DSC All Ship call and to switch to requested channel.

[PAUSE]: Temporarily disable automatic switching to the requested channel. (In some cases automatically switching to a requested channel might disrupt important ongoing communications. This feature allows commercial users to suspend channel switching and



stay on the working channel selected before the All Ships call was received.) [QUIT]: Quit the automatic channel switching and revert to the last selected working channel.

Note: If no key is pressed within 10 seconds the radio automatically changes to the requested channel.

4. Press the [QUIT] soft key to return to the channel display.

3.5 Individual Call

The Individual call contacts another vessel with a DSC VHF radio and automatically switches the receiving radio to a desired communications channel. This feature is similar to calling a vessel on CH16 and requesting to go to another channel. Up to 80 individual contacts can be programmed, in the Individual Directory.

3.5.1 How to register DSC stations to the Individual Directory

The Individual Directory allows you to save a vessel or person's name and the MMSI number associated with vessels you wish to transmit Individual calls, auto polling, position request, and position report transmissions.

To transmit an Individual call you must program this directory with information of the persons you wish to call, similar to how you program the telephone directory in a cellular phone.

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Individual Directory] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Select [ADD] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.

-Individual ADD Edit Delete	Directory-
SELECT	QUIT
-Individual	Directory-
Individual	Name
-	
ID:	
ENT BAG	

 Enter the first letter of the name of the vessel or person you want to reference in the directory.
 Example: Press the 8/PA key repeatedly to toggle among the seven available

characters associated with that key: $8 \rightarrow T \rightarrow U \rightarrow V \rightarrow t \rightarrow u \rightarrow v \rightarrow 8...$

- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to save the first letter in the name and move to the next letter to the right.
- Repeat steps 5 and 6 to complete the name. The name can have a maximum of 11 characters. Use the [ENT] soft key to move to the next space. This method



can also be used to enter a blank space in the name. If you enter a wrong character, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong character is selected, then enter the correct character.

- 8. After the eleventh letter or space has been entered, press and hold the [ENT] soft key to advance to the ID line, where you enter the MMSI number.
- 9. Enter the MMSI number (nine digits). If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected, then press the correct numeric key.
- 10. After you have entered the MMSI number, press and hold the [ENT] soft key to save the data.
- 11. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

3.5.2 How to select the Individual call reply method

The DSC Individual call requests you to switch to a working channel for voice communications. The radio can automatically or manually switch to the channel. For manual, the default setting, the MMSI of the calling vessel is shown, allowing you to see who is calling. This function is similar to the caller ID feature on a cellular phone.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Individual Reply] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Automatic] or [Manual] then press the [ENT] soft key to save the setting.



5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.
3.5.3 How to select the Individual call acknowledge method

The radio can be setup to transmit a reply automatically (default setting) or set so the radio does not reply to an Individual call.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Individual Ack] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Able to Comply] or [Unable] then press the [ENT] soft key to save the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

3.5.4 Individual/Group call ringer

When an Individual call or Group call is received, the radio produces a ringing sound for two minutes (default setting). You can select the Individual call ringer time and turn the ringer on or off as desired.

How to set the individual/Group call ringer time

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Individual Ring] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a ringing time then press the [ENT] soft key to save the setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

How to turn the ringer off

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [DSC Beep] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Individual] if you wish to disable the Individual call ringer, or [Group] if you wish to disable the Group call ringer.
- 5. Press the [ENT] soft key
- 6. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Off] then press the [ENT] soft key to save the setting.
- 7. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

To turn the ringer on, select [On] at step 6 in the procedure.







-Individual Ring-DEFAULT (2MIN)

15 sec 10 sec 5 se

3.5.5 How to transmit an Individual call

The Individual call lets you contact a vessel that has a DSC radio. This feature is similar to calling a vessel on CH16 and requesting to go to another channel.

Transmit to vessel registered in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Individual] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select who you want to contact then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the operating channel you want to communicate on, then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the individual DSC signal.
- When an Individual call acknowledgment is received, the established channel is automatically changed to the channel which is selected at step 4 above and a ringing tone sounds.
- Press the [QUIT] soft key to listen to the channel to make sure it is not busy, then press the microphone's PTT switch and talk into the microphone to the other vessel.

Transmit to vessel not registered in the Individual Directory

You can make an Individual call by using a manually entered MMSI number.

- 1. Press the **CALL/MENU** key to show the [DSC Menu].
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Individual] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Press the [NEW ID] soft key, select [MANUAL] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Enter the MMSI number (nine digits). (If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected, then press the correct numeric key.)





- 5. After you have entered the MMSI number, press and hold the [SELECT] soft key.
- 6. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the operating channel you want to communicate on then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 7. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the individual DSC signal.
- 8. When an Individual call acknowledgment is received, the established channel is automatically changed to the channel which is selected at step 6 above and a ringing tone sounds.
- Press the [QUIT] soft key to listen to the channel to make sure it is not busy, then press the microphone's PTT switch and talk into the microphone to the other vessel.



When an individual DSC call is received, the radio proceeds according to how it is set for individual call reply. In automatic reply, the radio automatically responds (default setting) to the calling ship and switches to the requested channel for voice communications. For manual reply, the operator selects whether to reply to the call or not.

Automatic reply

- 1. When an Individual call is received, the Individual call ringing alarm sounds. Push any key to stop the alarm. The radio automatically switches to the requested channel. The display shows the MMSI of the vessel calling.
- 2. Press any key to stop the alarm.
- 3. Press the [QUIT] soft key to return to radio operation.
- 4. Press the microphone's **PTT** switch and talk into the microphone to the other vessel.





Manual reply

1. When an Individual call is received, the Individual call ringing alarm sounds.

Push any key to stop the alarm. The display shows the MMSI of the vessel calling and three soft keys: [ACCEPT], [PAUSE], and [QUIT].

ACCEPT: Continue with the call. You can change



PAUSE: Pause the call. The radio shows the stand-

by display with the indication "INDIVIDUAL Pausing" flashing. You can resume the call by pressing the [RESUME] soft key.

QUIT: Quit the call.

the channel if necessary.

2. Press the [ACCEPT] soft key and the screen shown below appears. Follow the appropriate instructions in the table below.



ABLE to reply	UNABLE to reply
1) Press the [ABLE] soft key. Received Individual Name:VERT ID:123456789 Category:Routine CH: 06 Able to comply Transmit?	Press the [UNABLE] soft key. The stand- by display appears after completion of the transmission.
 2) Do one of the following: a) Transmit on the channel selected: Press the [YES] soft key. Go to step 5). b) Transmit on a different channel: Press the [CHG CH] soft key to show the channel selection screen. 	
 3) Use the CH knob to select a channel then push the [SELECT] soft key. For manual channel input, press the [MANUAL] soft key. 	
 The display shown after step 1) appears; press the [YES] soft key to transmit. 	
 When the message "Connected" appears, press the microphone's PTT switch and talk into the microphone to the other vessel. 	

3.6 DSC Log

The FM-4721 logs transmitted calls, received distress calls, and Individual calls. The DSC log feature is similar to an answering machine where calls are recorded for re-

view. A \square icon appears in the log to indicate unread received call. The FM-4721 can store the latest 24 transmitted calls, the latest 27 distress calls, and the latest 64 other calls ([Individual], [Group], [All Ship], etc.).

3.6.1 Transmitted call log

The transmitted call log stores all transmitted DSC calls. Calls can be made from the log.

- 1. Press the **CALL/MENU** key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Log] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Transmitted Log] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the station (name or MMSI number) then press the [SELECT] soft key to review details for the selected station.
- 5. Press the [CALL] soft key to retransmit the call, if desired, or the [QUIT] soft key to close the log.

3.6.2 Distress log

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Log] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Distress Log] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the station (name or MMSI number) you want to review the distress call then press the [SELECT] soft key to show call details.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key to close the log.

3.6.3 Other call log

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Log] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Other Call Log] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the station (name or MMSI number) you want to review and/or call back then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [CALL] soft key to call back, if desired, or the [QUIT] soft key to close the log.



Dis 08:15A 06:30A 09:42P	stress 23456 Pamle SUN L	Log- 7891 🖂 I GHT
SELECT		
−Dis [Nar Tir −D Stat	stress Distres ne: ID:234 ne:08: IST IN us:ACP	Log- ss 567891 15AM IFO- ≤ed ▼





3.6.4 How to delete calls from a log

- 1. Press the **CALL/MENU** key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Log] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [LOG Delete] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the category ([Transmitted Log], [Distress Log], or [Other Call Log]) to delete then press the [SELECT] soft key. For example, select the [Distress Log].
- 5. Select [All Log Delete] or [View Log List] then press the [SELECT] soft key. Do one of the following:
 - Delete all entries from selected log Select [All Log Delete] with the CH knob, press the [SELECT] soft key, then press the [OK] soft key.

Delete individual log entry

Select [View Log List] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the station (name or MMSI number) to delete then press the [DELETE] soft key. The display shows "Are your sure?". Press the [OK] soft key.





6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

3.7 Group Call

A Group call allows the user to contact a group of specific vessels (example members of a yacht club) using DSC radios that have a Group call function. When a Group call is sent, all DSC radios in the group automatically switch to the channel specified in the call to prepare for voice communications. This function is useful for yacht clubs and vessels traveling together that want to collectively make announcements on a predetermined channel. Up to 32 Group call MMSIs can be programmed.

3.7.1 How to register DSC stations to the Group Directory

For this function to operate, the same Group call MMSI must be registered into all the DSC VHF radios within the group of vessels that use this feature. To understand Group call MMSI programming, first a ship MMSI has to be understood.

Ship MMSI: The first three digits are called an MID (Maritime Identification Digits) and identify the country where the ship's MMSI is registered. The last six digits are specific to the ship's ID. For example, if the MMSI is "366123456", "366" is the MID and "123456" is the ship's MMSI.

Group MMSI:

- Group MMSI numbers are not assigned by the FCC or other organizations licensed to assign ship MMSI.
- The first digit of a Group call MMSI is always set to "0" as required by international regulations. All FURUNO radios automatically have "0" as the first digit in a Group call MMSI.
- The USCG recommends programming the MID of a ship MMSI into the second, third and fourth digits of the Group call MMSI as it denotes the area the ship is located.
- The last five digits are decided by persons in the group. This is an important step as all radios in the group must contain the same Group call MMSI so they can contact one another. There is a chance that another group of vessels has the same Group call MMSI as yours. If this happens, simply change one or more of the last five digits of the Group call MMSI.
- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Group Directory] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Select [Add] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 5. Enter the first letter of the name of the group you want to reference in the directory. Example: Press the **4/DIM** key repeatedly to toggle among the seven available characters associated with that key: $4 \rightarrow G \rightarrow H \rightarrow I \rightarrow g \rightarrow h \rightarrow i \rightarrow 4...$

Group Directory-
ADD
Delete
Derete
Group Directory
-droup Directory-
Group Name
_
ID:0
10.0
ENT BACK QUIT
-Group Directory-
Group Name
H
10.0
ENT BACK QUIT

- 6. Press the **ENT** key to save the first letter in the name and move to the next letter to the right.
- 7. Repeat steps 5 and 6 to complete the name. The name can have a maximum of 11 characters. Press the **ENT** key to move to the next space. This method can also be used to enter a blank space in the name. If you enter a wrong character, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong character is selected, then enter the correct character.
- 8. After the name has been entered, press and hold the **ENT** key to advance to the Group call MMSI number entry (ID line).
- 9. Enter the MMSI number (nine digits: first digit permanently set to "0"). If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected, then press the correct numeric key.
- 10. Press and hold the ENT key to save the data.
- 11. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

3.7.2 How to transmit a Group call

Transmit Group call to group registered in the Group Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Group] then press the [SELECT] soft key to show the [Group Directory] menu.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the Group call name you want to contact then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the operating channel you want to communicate on then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the Group call signal.
- 6. The display shows "Transmitting" while the Group call signal is being sent.
- 7. After the Group call is transmitted, all the radios in the Group call automatically switch to the designated channel.
- 8. Listen to the channel to make sure it is not busy, then press the microphone's **PTT** switch and call the other vessel you desire to communicate with.

Transmit Group call to group not registered in the Group Directory

This feature allows you to contact a group of vessels by entering their Group call MMSI manually.

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Group] then press the [SELECT] soft key to show the [Group Directory] menu.
- 3. Press the [New ID] soft key.
- 4. Select [Manual] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 5. Enter the MMSI number (nine digits: first digit permanently set to "0"). If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected, then press the correct numeric key.
- 6. Press and hold the [SELECT] soft key.





7. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the operating channel you want to communicate on then press the [SELECT] soft key.



- 8. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the Group call signal.
- 9. The display shows "Transmitting" while the Group call signal is being sent.
- 10. After the Group call is transmitted, all the radios in the group automatically switch to the designated channel.
- 11. Listen to the channel to make sure it is not busy, then press the **PTT** button and talk into the microphone to the Group call of vessels.

3.7.3 How to receive a Group call

- 1. When a Group call is received, the FM-4721 releases the ringer alarm and the radio automatically switches to the requested channel.
- 2. Press any key to stop the alarm.
- 3. Follow the procedure in step 3 in section 3.4.2.
- 4. Monitor the channel for the person calling the group for a message.
- 5. If you want to respond, monitor the channel to make sure it is clear, then press the microphone's **PTT** switch and talk into the microphone to the group of vessels.
- 6. Press any key to return to radio operation.

Note: After a Group call is received, the time the call was made and the ship's MMSI or vessels name that made the call appear on the display.

-Group Call- Name: D:034567891 Category:Routine CH: 06
Transmitting
-Group Call- Name: ID:034567891 Category:Routine CH: 06 Since: 00:25



3.8 **Position Request Call**

Advancements in DSC have made it possible to poll the location of another vessel and show the position of that vessel on the display of the FM-4721. FURUNO has taken this feature one step further. If a compatible GPS chart plotter is connected to the FM-4721, the polled position of the vessel is shown on the display of the GPS chart plotter making it easy to navigate to the location of the polled vessel.

Note: The other vessel must have an operating GPS receiver connected to its DSC radio and must not have its radio set to deny position requests. (Refer to section 3.5 to enter information into the individual directory).

3.8.1 How to set up a position request reply

The FM-4721 automatically (default setting) or manually transmits your position when requested by another vessel. This selection is important if you are concerned about someone polling the position of your vessel that you may not want to. In the manual mode the MMSI or the name of the person making the request appears on the display, allowing you to choose to transmit your position to the requesting vessel or not.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Position Reply] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Select [Automatic] or [Manual] then press the [ENT] soft key to save setting.[Automatic]: The radio automatically transmits your vessel's position to the re-

questing vessel. [Manual]: The display of the FM-4721 shows who is requesting the position. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit your position to the requesting vessel.

5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

3.8.2 How to set up the position request ringer

The position request ringer, which beeps when a position request is received, can be turned off.

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [DSC Beep] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Select [POS Request] with the CH knob then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Select [Off] with the CH knob then press the [ENT] soft key to save the setting.
- 6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

To re-enable the ringer tone, Select [On] in step 5 of the procedure.

Note: When the [Position Reply] is set to [Automatic], the position request ringer does not sound regardless of the setting in this procedure.



-Position Reply-

Manual

ENT

3.8.3 How to transmit a Position Request call to another vessel

Request position of vessel registered in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [POS Request] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a name then press the [SELECT] soft key. The Category screen appears.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [.Routine] or [Safety] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the position request DSC call. When the FM-4721 receives the position from the polled vessel it appears on the display and is also transferred and shown on a GPS chart plotter (if connected to the FM-4721).



6. Press the [QUIT] soft key to return to radio operation.

Request position of vessel not registered in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [POS Request] then press the [SELECT] soft key to show the [POS Request Call] display.
- 3. Press the [NEW ID] soft key to show the following display.
- 4. Select [Manual] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 5. Enter the MMSI number (nine digits) which you want to contact. If you enter a wrong digit, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong digit is selected, then press the correct numeric key.
- 6. After you have entered the MMSI number, press and hold the [SELECT] soft key. The Category screen appears.
- 7. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Routine] or [Safety] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 8. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the position request DSC call.
- 9. The position of the polled vessel appears on the display and is also transferred to the GPS chart plotter (if connected to the FM-4721).
- 10. Press the [QUIT] soft key to return to radio operation.



3.8.4 When you receive a Position Request call

When you receive a Position Request call from another vessel, a ringing alarm sounds and "POS Request" appears on the display. The FM-4721 automatically or manually replies to the request depending on the setting of [Position Reply] in the [DSC Setup] menu.

Automatic transmission of your position

- 1. When you receive a Position Request call, position coordinates are automatically transmitted to the vessel that requested your vessel's position.
- 2. 10 seconds after your position is transmitted, the radio automatically changes to the requested channel. Press the [QUIT] soft key to exit from the position request display.

Manual transmission of your position

- 1. When a Position Request call is received from another vessel, the display looks something like the one shown below.
- A ringing alarm sounds four times. To transmit your vessel's position to the requesting vessel, press the [REPLY] soft key. Or to exit from the position request display without transmitting position, press the [QUIT] soft key.



3.9 Position Report Call

A Position Report call transmits your position to another vessel. Your vessel must have an operating GPS receiver connected to the FM-4721 to transmit your position. The MMSI of the vessel can be one you have programmed, or entered manually.

3.9.1 How to enable, disable the position report ringer

A ringer sounds when you receive a request for your position. Enable or disable the position report ringer as follows:

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Select [DSC Beep] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [POS Report] then push the [ENT] soft key.



- 5. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Off] then push the [ENT] soft key.
- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to save the selected setting.
- 7. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

To re-enable the ringer tone, select [On] at step 4 in the procedure.

3.9.2 How to transmit a Position Report call

Transmit your position to vessel registered in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [POS Report] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select a name in the directory then press the [SELECT] soft key. The Category screen appears. Rotate the CH knob to select a category then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit your position to the selected vessel.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key to return to radio operation.

Transmit your position to vessel not registered in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [POS Report] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Press the [New ID] soft key.
- 4. Select [Manual] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 5. Enter the MMSI number that you want to contact. If you enter a wrong digit press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong number is selected, then press the correct numeric key.
- 6. Press and hold the [SELECT] soft key. The Category screen appears. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a category then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 7. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit your position to the selected vessel.
- 8. Press the [QUIT] key to return to radio operation.





3.9.3 When you receive a Position Report call

When another vessel transmits its position to the FM-4721 the following occurs:

- 1. The ringer sounds and NMEA sentences DSC, DSE are outputted to a GPS chart plotter (if connected to the FM-4721).
- 2. Press the CLR/WX key to stop the ringer.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to see the position information of the vessel then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Press the [QUIT] soft key to close the display and return to radio operation.

Received POS REPORT
ID:123456789
Category:Routine
Since: 01:03
-POS INFO- ▼
Received POS_REPORT
-PUS INFU- ▲
123°56 980F
POS Time: 10:00
DIST: 11.2NM
BRG: 273°
DIG. 270

3.10 Auto DSC Polling

The FM-4721 has the capability to automatically track four stations programmed into the individual directory.

The following procedure allows the time interval between position requests to be setup.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Setup] menu then press the SELECT soft key.
- 3. Select [Auto POS Interval] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the desired interval time (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 20, 30, and 40 minutes) and press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key numerous times to exit to the radio mode.

3.10.1 Selecting stations to be automatically polled (tracked)

Note: The radio uses the individual directory to select stations. Refer to paragraph 3.5.1 and enter MMSI of stations you want to poll before proceeding.

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Auto POS Polling], then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the [Select Address] then press the [SELECT] soft key. The radio shows four calling stations to be selected, select [Call 1] and press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. The radio shows the stations programmed in the Individual directory. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired station and press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Repeat steps 3 and 4 for [Call 2], [Call 3] and [Call 4] entries.
- 6. When finished, press the [QUIT] soft key numerous times to exit to the radio mode.





3.10.2 Enable/Disable auto DSC polling

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Auto POS Polling] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Activation] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Select [Start] to enable transmissions to the stations or [Stop] to disable transmissions to the stations.
- 5. Press the [ENT] soft key.
- 6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to exit to the radio mode.

Note 1: "(A)" appears on the screen when Auto DSC polling is active.

Note 2: When the radio receives position reports from a called vessel, the NMEA 0183 DSC and DSE sentences are output to a GPS chart plotter.

3.11 Auto CH Switch Time

This feature allows you to change the switching time which is automatically shifted to the requested channel when the Distress Alert, All Ships Call, and Group Call are received.

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Setup] menu.
- 3. Press the [SELECT] soft key, then select [Auto CH Switch Time] with the **CH** knob.
- 4. Press the [SELECT] soft key, then rotate the **CH** knob to the desired time.
- 5. Press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

Auto	POS	Pol	ling-
Select	Addr	ress	
SELECT			
<u> </u>	000	D. L.	
<u> </u>	POS	POL	ing –
-Auto START	POS	POI	Ing –
-Auto START Stop	POS	POT	Ing –
-Auto START Stop	POS	POI	Ing –
-Auto START Stop	PUS	POI	IIng –

-DSC Setup- Individual Ring Group Directory	•
Position Reply Auto POS Interval	
DSC Beep	.
S LECT QUIT	

-Auto CH 20 sec	Switch	Time-
30 sec		
40 sec		
50 sec		
1. <u>0</u> min		
1.5 min		•
ENT		QUIT

3.12 DSC Test

This function contacts another DSC-equipped vessel to test your DSC radio for proper operation. To use this feature, the radio that you transmit the test call to must have the DSC test feature.

To do the DSC test, enter the MMSI of another vessel. The MMSI can be one you have programmed into the individual directory or a manually entered one.

3.12.1 How to make a DSC test call with MMSI in the Individual Directory

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [DSC Test] then press the [SELECT]soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a vessel (station) then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the DSC test call to the other vessel.

After the radio receives a test call reply from the vessel, the radio rings and shows the "TEST ACK" display, which confirms the radio you called received the test call.



3.12.2 How to make a DSC test call by manually entering MMSI

- 1. Press the CALL/MENU key to show the [DSC Menu].
- 2. Rotate the CH knob to select [DSC Test] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [Manual] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Enter the MMSI number which you want to contact.
- 5. Press and hold the [SELECT] soft key to show the [Test Call] page.
- 6. Press the [YES] soft key to transmit the DSC test call to the other vessel.

After the radio receives a test call reply from the vessel, the radio rings and shows the "TEST ACK" display, which confirms the radio you called received the test call.



4. GENERAL SETUP

The procedures in this chapter can also be done from the HS-4721 Handset.

4.1 Display Contrast

The display contrast can be adjusted to suit environmental conditions.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [General Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [Contrast] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to set the contrast then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected level. The contrast level can be set from 0 to 31.



5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.2 Time Offset

If you want to use local time, set the time difference between UTC and local time. The offset is added or subtracted from the time received from the GPS receiver or chart plotter. Time is only displayed when a GPS receiver or Chart Plotter is connected.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Time Offset] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select time offset of your location then press the [ENT] soft key to store the time offset. Set "00:00" to use UTC (Universal Time Coordinated or GPS Satellite Time).



5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



4.3 Time Area

Time can be shown in UTC time or local time with the offset.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Time Area] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [UTC] or [Local] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.4 Time Notation

You can show time in 12-hour or 24-hour format.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Time Display] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [12 Hour] or [24 Hour] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.5 Units of Measurement

Select the unit of measurement for speed and distance.

Note: A GPS receiver must be connected to the radio to show speed and distance.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [Unit of Measure] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Speed] or [Distance] then press the [SELECT] soft key.



- Rotate the CH knob to select a unit. Available selections are [KTS (Knots)], [MPH (Mile/Hour)] or [KMH (Kilo-Meter/Hour)] for speed, and [NH (Nautical Mile)], [SM (Statute Mile)] or [KM (Kilo-Meter)] for distance.
- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 7. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



—Time	Display-
12 HOUR	
24 hour	
ENT	QUIT

4.6 COG Display Format

GPS COG (Course Over Ground) can be shown in True or Magnetic.

Note: A GPS must be connected to the radio to be able to show COG.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Magnetic] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [True] or [Magnetic] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.7 Manual Input of the Position (Lat/Lon)

You may transmit the Latitude/Longitude of your vessel manually if you don't have a GPS receiver or something is wrong with your GPS receiver. When there is no position input, the GPS icon appears (flashing), as shown in the figure at the bottom of this page.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Position Input] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Enter the latitude/longitude of your vessel and UTC time in 24-hour notation. To set coordinate: North (N): 6/DW key South (S): 7/ SQRM key East (E): 3/SCAN key West (W): 9/FOG key

You may backspace the cursor by pressing the [BACK] soft key, if you made a mistake.





- 5. When you have completed the input of position and time, press and hold down the [ENT] soft key for two seconds to save the setting.
- 6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

The indication "POS Data Manual" appears when position is input manually.



GPS icon (flashing) (Indicates no position data from GPS receiver.)

tic-
QUIT

4.8 Key Beep

Set the level of the key beep that is emitted when a key is pressed.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Key Beep] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired level then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected level. The beep level can be set from [Level 1] to [Level 6], [High], or [Off].
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft several times to return to radio operation.

4.9 Treble and Bass Audio Tone Control

The treble and bass of the speaker can be adjusted for best listening in noisy environments. The effect is similar to the treble and bass controls on stereo equipment.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Tone Control] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Select [Bass] with the **CH** knob then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Rotate the **CH** knob to select desired audio response in the lower frequency range then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting. The setting range is 6 to +6.
- 6. Select [Treble] with the CH knob then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 7. Rotate the **CH** knob to select desired audio response in the higher frequency range then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting. The setting range is -6 to +6.
- 8. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.10 Fog Alert Tone Frequency

Set the fog alert tone according to the size your vessel, as shown below.

70 to 200 Hz: Vessel that are 200 meters or more in length 130 to 350Hz: Vessel that are 75 meters but less than 200 meters in length 250 to 525 Hz: Vessel that are 20 meters but less than 75 meters in length 250 to 525 Hz: Vessel that are 12 meters but less than 20 meters in length

Note: The default radio fog frequency is set to 400Hz. In most cases this frequency should not be changed unless the vessel is very large.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.





4-5

Frequency

QUIT

- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Fog Frequency] then press the [SELECT] soft key
- Rotate the CH knob to select the desired tone frequency then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

4.11 How to Name the Radio or Handset

You can change the name of the radio or second station microphone. Example: "Radio" to "Cabin", "RAM1" to "Flybridge".

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Station Name] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. With the second station microphone connected, rotate the **CH** knob to select the unit ([Radio], [RAM1] or [RAM2]) to be named then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Press applicable key to enter the first letter of the new station name. Example: Press the **2/MEM** key repeatedly to toggle among the seven available characters associated with that key: $2 \rightarrow A \rightarrow B \rightarrow C \rightarrow a \rightarrow b \rightarrow c \rightarrow 2...$
- 6. Press the **ENT** key to store the first letter in the name and move to the next letter to the right.
- 7. Repeat steps 5 and 6 to complete the name. The name can have a maximum of 8 characters. If you do not use all 8 characters, press the ENT key to move to the next space. This method can also be used to enter a blank space in the name. If you enter a wrong char-

acter, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong character is selected, then enter the correct character.

- 8. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key to enter the name.
- 9. If you want to enter the name of the connected HS-4721 Handset, repeat steps 4 through 8.
- 10. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



Name-

QUIT

-Station Select Unit

Radio

ENT

Unit Name RADIO

-Fog 650 Hz 600 Hz 550 Hz

500 Hz 450 Hz 400 Hz

ENT



4.12 Soft Keys

This section shows you how to set up the soft keys. You can select the number of soft keys to use, program the soft keys and select how long to show the soft key icon after a soft key is pressed.

4.12.1 Transceiver unit

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [Soft Keys] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Number of Soft Keys] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 5. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the number of soft keys (3 through 10) to use then press the [ENT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Key Assignment] then press the [SELECT] soft key (to assign the use of selected soft keys).





3

4567

8

FNT

- Rotate the CH knob to select the key ([Key 1], [Key 2], [Key 3], etc.) then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select a new function then press the [ENT] soft key. See the table below for functions.



-Number of Soft Keys

QUIT

- 9. Press the [QUIT] soft key.
- 10. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Key Timer] then press the [SELECT] soft key. [Key Timer] sets how long to display a soft key icon after a soft key is pressed.



- 11. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the time then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 12. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

Function	Description
[DIMMER]	Selects the menu for the display and key back light intensity.
[SCAN]	Starts and stops scanning.
[DW]	Starts and stops dual watch scan.
[IC]	Activates Intercom between radio and HS-4721 Handset.
[PA/FOG]	Activates the PA / foghorn function.
[PRESET]	Programs or deletes the preset memory channel.
[SCRAMBLER]	Activates the voice scrambler.

4.12.2 Handset HS-4721

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears. Select [GENERAL SETUP] with the ▲ or ▼ key then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 2. Press the ▼ key to select [Soft Keys] then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 3. Press the ▼ key to select [Number of Soft Keys] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select the number of soft keys (3 through 10) to use then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select [Key Assignment] (to assign the use of selected soft keys) then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select the key ([KEY1], [KEY2], [KEY3], etc.) then press the [SELECT] soft key. Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select a new function to be assigned then press the [ENT] soft key. Available functions are listed on the previous page. Repeat step 6 to program the other soft keys.
- Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select [Key Timer] then press the [SELECT] soft key. [Key Timer] sets how long a soft key icon is shown on the display after a soft key is pressed.
- 8. Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select the time then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 9. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to handset operation.

4.13 Calendar Setup

The FM-4721 has a built in clock to remember date, time, latitude and longitude. A GPS receiver not only provides position data but also updates the calendar. Refer to section 8.5 Accessory Cable.

GPS receiver connected: The FM-4721 automatically updates the calendar date and time information after being connected for one hour.

GPS receiver not connected: The date and time must be manually entered into the Calendar Menu in order for the clock to operate. The time you enter is your local time in UTC format.



UTC/GMT

4. GENERAL SETUP

Example 1: If you are East of UTC time, add the offset to your time.

City	Rome
Offset	+1
Time (convert local time to 24 hour)	4:00PM (12hour) or 16:00 (24hour)
Calculate 24hour local - Offset (East of UTC)	16:00 - 01:00 = 15:00

Example 2: If you are west of UTC time, subtract the offset from your time.

City	New York
Offset	-5
Time (convert local time to 24 hour)	4:00PM (12hour) or 16:00 (24hour)
Calculate 24hour local + Offset (West of UTC)	16:00 + 05:00 = 21:00

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Calendar] then press the [SELECT] soft key. Repeat this step.
- 4. Enter the current date (yyyy/mm/dd) with the numeric keys. If you made a mistake, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong number is selected, then enter the correct number.



5. Use the map on the previous page to find the UTC time of your position.

Note: For daylight savings time subtract one hour to the offset in your time zone.

- 6. To enter the time, press the [ENT] soft key until the first digit in the Time line is selected then enter the time with the numeric keys.
- 7. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 8. Select [Update] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 9. Turn the **CH** knob to select the method of the time adjustment, [Automatic] or [Manual] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 10. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

Note: The calendar is backed up for approximately one week after the power is turned off.

-Calendar-		
Calendar		
UPDATE		
SELECT	QUIT	



4.14 How to Set the Timeouts

A timeout determines the number of minutes the radio should keep a given screen displayed before it restores the standby display, if no radio operation is detected. There are three types of screens for which you can set a timeout: menu, DSC non-distress, and DSC distress. Set the timeout for these screens as follows:

- 1. Long-press the CALL/MENU key to show the [Setup Menu].
- 2. Use the CH knob to select [DSC Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Use the **CH** knob to select [No Act Timer on Menu], [No Act Timer on DSC] or [No Act Timer on DIST] as appropriate then press the [SELECT] soft key. For example, select [No Act Timer on Menu]. (The choices for each menu are the same.)



No Act Timer on Menu: Set the number of minutes to keep a menu screen displayed before the standby screen is restored, if there is no radio operation.**No Act Timer on DSC**: Set the number of minutes to wait before the standby screen is restored, if there is no radio operation after a DSC non-distress message is received.**No Act Timer on DIST**: Set the number of minutes to wait before the standby screen is restored, if there is no radio operation after a DSC non-distress message is restandby screen is restored, if there is no radio operation after a DSC distress message is received.

- 4. Use the **CH** knob to select the number of minutes desired (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 15, 20) or [OFF] then press the [ENT] soft key. [OFF] keeps a screen displayed until radio operation is detected.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to close the menu and return to radio operation.

4. GENERAL SETUP

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHANNEL FUNCTION SETUP 5.

CH Group 5.1

Select the channel group among USA, Canada, and International.

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the CH knob to select [CH FUNCTION Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Group] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select desired channel group among [USA], [INTL] and [CAN] (Canada) then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

5.2 **Scan Memory**

In order to scan channels, store the desired scan channels in the scan memory as shown below.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the CH knob to select [Scan Memory CH] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the channel to scan then press the [ADD] soft key. "MEM" appears on the display to indicate that the channel has been memorized to the scan channel.
- 5. Repeat step 4 for to select another channel.
- 6. To delete a channel from the list, select the channel then press the [DELETE] soft key. "MEM" icon disappears from the display.
- 7. When you have completed your selection, press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



-CH Group-Group 1:USA GROUP 2:INTL

Group 3:CAN



5-2

5.3 Scan Type

Select the scan mode between [Memory Scan] and [Priority Scan].

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Scan Type] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Priority Scan] or [Memory Scan] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

5.4 Scan Resume

Set the time the FM-4721 waits after a transmission ends until the radio resumes channel scanning.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Scan Resume] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select the desired resume time then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting. [OFF] resumes scanning after the other station stops transmitting (carrier drops).
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

5.5 Priority CH

The default priority channel in channel scan is CH16. To select a different channel, do the following:

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Priority CH] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the desired channel to be a priority CH then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.







5.6 Weather Alert Setup

In the event of extreme weather disturbances, such as storms and hurricanes, the NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration) sends a weather alert accompanied by a 1050 Hz tone and subsequent weather report on one of the NOAA weather channels. You can turn this alert on or off.

- 1. Press and hold down the **CALL/MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.



- 3. Select [WX Alert] with the **CH** knob then press the [SE-LECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [On] or [Off] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

5.7 Channel Naming

When the radio mode is in use, the display shows a name under the channel number selected. This is name of the current channel. You can customize channel names as follows:

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [CH Function Setup] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [CH Name] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select a channel then press the [ENT] soft key.
- 5. Press applicable key to enter the first letter of the new channel name.

Example: Press the **4/DIM** key repeatedly to toggle among the seven available characters associated with the key: $4 \rightarrow G \rightarrow H \rightarrow I \rightarrow g \rightarrow h \rightarrow i \rightarrow 4...$

- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to store the first letter in the name and move to the next letter to the right.
- 7. Repeat steps 5 and 6 to complete the name. The name can have a maximum of 16 characters. Use the [ENT] soft key to shift the cursor. This method can also be used to enter a blank space in the name. If you enter a wrong character, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong character is selected, then enter the correct character.
- 8. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key to save the name.
- 9. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



Select 69	CH	, 		
CH Name HLEASURE				
ENT	BACK			

-CH Nar Select CH 69	ne-
CH Name HOOKUP	
ENT BACK	



6-1

6. ATIS SETUP

The FM-4721 supports the ATIS (Automatic Transmitter Identification System) used in Inland waterways in Europe. When enabled, the ATIS mode transmits a unique ATIS code each time the microphone's **PTT** switch is released at the end of a transmission. Users should check with their local marine regulatory authority in their country for assistance in obtaining an ATIS code. "ATIS" appears on the display when the ATIS mode is active.

6.1 ATIS Code Programming

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [ATIS Setup] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [ATIS Code] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Press applicable keys to enter your ATIS (ten digits). (If you made an error when you entered the ATIS, press the [BACK] soft key until the wrong number is selected, then press the correct numeric key.)
- 5. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key. The radio asks you to input the ATIS number again. Do step 4 above to enter the number again. Press and hold the [ENT] soft key.
- 6. Enter the number. Press the [OK] soft key to store the ATIS number in the memory.
- 7. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



6.2 ATIS Channel Group

The FM-4721 has the capability to turn on and off the ATIS feature for each channel Group call but operator must select only INTL channel group.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [ATIS Group] menu then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Group] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the channel Group call you wish to change the setting then press the [ENT] soft key.



- 5. Rotate the CH knob to select [On] or [Off].
- 6. Press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 7. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

7. MAINTENANCE, TROUBLESHOOTING

ELECTRICAL SHOCK HAZARD Do not open the equipment.

This equipment uses high voltage that can cause electrical shock. Only qualified persons can work inside the equipment.

NOTICE

Do not apply paint, anti-corrosive sealant or contact spray to plastic parts or equipment coating.

Those items contain products that can damage plastic parts and equipment coating.

7.1 General Maintenance

CAUTION

The heatsink can get hot enough to cause a burn injury. Allow the unit to cool before doing any maintenance procedures.

The inherent quality of the solid-state components used in this transceiver should provide many years of continuous use. However, take the following precautions to prevent damage to the transceiver.

- Keep the microphone connected or the jack covered at all times to prevent corrosion of electrical contacts.
- Remove dust from the cabinet with a dry clean cloth. Do not use commercial cleaners to clean the equipment. Those cleaners can remove paint and markers.
- Check that all cables are tightly fastened. Check the cables for corrosion and rust. Connect the cables that have loosened. Replace any damaged cables.
- Never key the microphone unless an antenna or suitable dummy load is connected to the transceiver.
- The supply voltage range to the transceiver must be within 10.8 15.6 VDC.
- Use only FURUNO-approved accessories and replacement parts.
- Wipe the LCD carefully to prevent scratching, using tissue paper and an LCD cleaner. To remove dirt or salt deposits, use an LCD cleaner, wiping slowly with tissue paper so as to dissolve the dirt or salt. Change paper frequently so the salt or dirt does not scratch the LCD. Do not use solvents such as thinner, acetone or benzene for cleaning.
- In the unlikely event of serious problems, please contact your dealer.

7.2 Troubleshooting Chart

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy
Transceiver cannot be powered.	No DC voltage to the transceiv- er, or blown fuse	Check the 10.8 - 15.6 VDC battery con- nections and the fuse.
		 The (power) button needs to be pressed and held to turn the radio on.
Transceiver blows fuse when connected to power supply.	Reversed polarity of power wires	Check the power cable for DC voltage, or replace the fuse (6A 250 V). Make sure the red wire is connected to the positive (+) battery post, and the black wire is connected to the negative (-) bat- tery post. If the fuse still blows, contact your dealer.
Popping or whining noise from the speak- er while engine runs.	Engine noise	Reroute the DC power cable away from the engine. Add a noise suppressor on power cable. Change to resistive spark plug wires and/or add an alternator whine filter.
Sound is not emitted from the internal or external speaker.	Accessory cable	Check the connections of the accessory cable for short circuit on external speaker cable (WHITE & SHIELD).
Sound is not emitted from the PA speaker.	Accessory cable	Check the connections of the accessory cable for short circuit on PA speaker cable. (RED & SHIELD).
Receiving station re- ports low transmit power, even with HIGH power.	Antenna	Have the antenna checked or test the transceiver with another antenna. If the problem persists, contact your dealer.
The message "HI BATTERY" or "LO BATTERY" appears when the power is turned on.	The power supply voltage is too high or too low.	Confirm that the connected power supply voltage is within 10.8 - 15.6 VDC.
Your position is not	Accessory cable.	Check the accessory cable connection.
displayed.	Setting of the GPS receiver	Check the output signal format of the GPS receiver. This radio requires the GLL, RMB, or RMC sentence as an output signal. If baud rate and parity can be set on the GPS receiver, select them to 4800 and NONE, respectively.
7.3 How to Replace the Fuse

If the power cannot be turned on, the fuse may have blown. To take out the fuse from the fuse holder on the power cable, hold both ends of the fuse holder and pull the fuse holder apart without bending the fuse holder. When you replace the fuse, confirm that the fuse is tightly fixed on the metal contact located inside the fuse holder. If the metal contact holding the fuse is loose, the fuse holder may become hot.



Use the proper fuse.

Use of a wrong fuse can result in damage to the equipment and cause fire.

7.4 How to Clear the Memory

To clear the scan memory and preset memory:

- 1. Turn the radio off.
- 2. Press and hold down the three soft keys then turn on the radio.

7.5 How to Reset the Microprocessor

To clear all memories and other settings to factory defaults (except the Channel Group, MMSI number, Individual Directory and Group Directory), follow the procedure shown below. The display shows "EE-PROM Resetting" while the resetting is being done.

- 1. Turn the radio off.
- 2. Press and hold the 16/9, CALL/MENU, and CLR/WX keys then turn on the radio.

7.6 Daily Test

The daily test is an FSK loop test that sends a dummy DSC message to check if the message is sent and received correctly.

- 1. Long push the CALL/MENU key to show the [Setup] Menu.
- 2. Rotate the CH knob to select [Daily Test] then press the [Select] soft key.



3. Push the [ENT] soft key to start the test.

The message "Testing" appears momentarily then "Check OK" or "Check NG" (No Good) appears. If NG appears, request service.

8. INSTALLATION

8.1 Transceiver Unit

The transceiver unit can be mounted on a desktop or overhead, or flush mounted in a panel. Choose a mounting location considering the points mentioned below.

- Follow the compass safety distance shown in the safety Instructions to avoid any interference to the compass from the speaker magnet in the transceiver.
- Select a location which provides easy access to the front panel controls.
- The location has space for installation of a microphone hanger.
- Choose a mounting location that is at least 1 m away from the radio's antenna.
- CAUTION: The heatsink can get hot enough to cause a burn injury. Select a location where it cannot be easily touched.

Note: To insure the radio does not affect the compass and the radio's performance is not affected by the antenna location, temporarily locate the radio in the desired location and:

- a) Examine the compass to see if the radio interferes with the compass.
- b) Connect the antenna and transmit. Check to ensure the radio is operating correctly by requesting a radio check.

8.1.1 Desktop or overhead mount

The supplied mounting bracket permits desktop or overhead mounting.

Use a 5 mm bit to drill the holes to a surface that is more than 10 mm thick and can support the unit's weight (1.5 kg). Fasten the bracket with the supplied screws, spring washers, flat washers, and nuts.



8.1.2 Flush mount (option)

Requires the MMB-84 flush mount bracket.

- 1. Make a rectangular template for the flush mount measuring 70×203 mm.
- 2. Use the template to mark the location where the rectangular hole is to be cut. Confirm that the space behind the dash or panel is deep enough to accommodate the transceiver (at least 177 mm deep). There must be at least 150 mm between the transceiver's heatsink and any wiring, cables or structures.
- 3. Cut out the rectangular hole and insert the transceiver.
- 4. Fasten the brackets to the sides of the transceiver with the lock-washer screw combination.
- 5. Turn the adjusting screws to adjust the tension so that the transceiver is tight against the mounting surface.



8.2 Antenna

Marine antennas are made to radiate signals equally in all horizontal directions, but not straight up. The objective of a marine antenna is to enhance the signal toward the horizon. The degree to which this is accomplished is called the antenna's gain. It is measured in decibels (dB) and is one of the major factors in choosing an antenna. In terms of effective radiated power (ERP), antennas are rated on the basis of how much gain they have over a theoretical antenna with zero gain. A 1 m, 3 dB gain antenna represents twice as much gain over the imaginary antenna.

Typically a 1 m 3 dB gain stainless steel whip is used on a sailboat mast. The longer 2.5 m 6 dB fiberglass whip is primarily used on power boats that require the additional gain.

8.3 Coaxial Cable

The VHF antenna is connected to the transceiver by means of a coaxial cable - a shielded transmission line. Coaxial cable is specified by its diameter and construction.

For runs less than 6 m, RG-58/U, which is approx. 1/4 inch in diameter, is a good choice. For runs over 6 m but less than 15 m, use the larger RG-8X or RG-213/U. For cable runs over 15 m, use RG-8X. See the figure below for how to attach the connector the cable.



To get your coaxial cable through a fitting and into your boat's interior, you may have to cut off the end plug and reattach it later. You can do this if you follow the directions that come with the connector. Be sure to make good soldered connections.

8.4 Electrical Connections

Connect the power cable, handset and antenna to the radio. The antenna and power supply connections are as follows:

- Mount the antenna at least 1 m away from the radio. At the rear of the radio, connect the antenna cable. The antenna cable must have a PL259 connector attached. Use coaxial cable RG-8/U if the antenna is 7.6 m or more from the radio. Use RG58 for distances less than 7.6 m.
- 2. Connect the red power wire to the positive terminal of the power source. Connect the black power wire to a negative ground.



- 3. Connect the handset to the remote connector on the rear panel.
- 4. If an external speaker is used, refer to section 8.5 for the connection.
- 5. It is advisable to have a certified marine technician check the power output and the standing wave ratio of the antenna after installation.



How to attach ferrite core

To suppress RF interference that can cause abnormal operation of the transceiver, attach the supplied three ferrite cores to the Accessory Cable/Power Cable and Extension Cable, then snap its two halves together, as shown in the illustration below.

Attach each ferrite core as close as possible to the transceiver body, as shown. Finally, wind some plastic tape around each ferrite core, to prevent vibration from causing the two halves to split apart.



8.5 Accessory Cable



Wire Color/Description	Connection Examples
WHITE - External Speaker (+)	Connect to external 4-ohm audio speaker
SHIELD - External Speaker (-)	Connect to external 4-ohm audio speaker
RED - PA Speaker (+)	Connect to external 4-ohm PA speaker
SHIELD - PA Speaker (-)	Connect to external 4-ohm PA speaker
GREEN - NMEA GPS Input (-)	Connect to NMEA (-) output of GPS receiver
BLUE - NMEA GPS Input (+)	Connect to NMEA (+) output of GPS receiver
GRAY - NMEA DSC Output (+)	Connect to NMEA (+) input of GPS receiver
BROWN - NMEA DSC Output (-)	Connect to NMEA (-) input of GPS receiver

When making connections between the radio, chart plotter, GPS receiver, ensure that the connections are tight and protected from shorting and the units are grounded. Whether flush mounting the radio or not, it is recommended that a waterproof 8-position screw terminal connector block be fixed to the bulkhead adjacent to the rear of the radio and the connections to and from the radio are made via this connector block.

Note: In some areas powerful AM broadcast stations may be heard when in the listenback mode. If this occurs, change the speaker wire to 2-conductor shielded audio cable. See the illustration below for connections.



Make Red and bare connections as short as possible.

GPS connections (4800 baud)

NMEA INPUT (GPS Information)

• The GPS receiver must have the NMEA Output turned on and set to 4800 Baud in the Setup menu. If there is a selection for PARITY, select NONE.

Wire Color/Description	Connection
BLUE - NMEA Input (+)	GPS NMEA output (+)
GREEN - NMEA Input (-)	GPS NMEA output (-) or common ground

- For further information on interfacing and setting up your GPS receiver, contact the manufacturer of the GPS receiver.
- The FM-4721 can read NMEA-0183 version 2.0 or higher.
- The NMEA 0183 input sentences are GLL, GGA, RMC and GNS (RMC sentence is recommended).

NMEA Output (DSC)

The NMEA 0183 output sentences are DSC and DSE.

Wire Color/Description	Connection
GRAY - NMEA Output (+)	Chart plotter NMEA input (+)
BROWN - NMEA Output (-)	GPS NMEA input (-) or common ground

How to check GPS receiver connections

After you have connected the FM-4721 to the GPS receiver, your position in latitude and longitude should appear on the display. If your position does not appear, the GPS icon flashes continuously. Check the connection between the radio and the GPS receiver.

Note: The indication "POS Data Manual" appears when position is input manually.



GPS icon (flashing)
(Indicates no position data from GPS receiver.)

8.6 Handset HS-4721

The Handset remotely controls the Radio, DSC, and PA/Fog functions. In addition, the FM-4721 can operate as a full function intercom system between the HS-4721 and the FM-4721.

- 1. Connect the Extension Cable to the Handset connector (eight pin) on the rear panel, then tighten the Nut (see illustration on the next page).
- 2. Referring to illustration on the next page, make a 30 mm hole in the wall, then insert the Extension Cable into this hole. Connect the Gasket and Mounting Bracket to the Extension Cable Connector using the Nut.

- 3. Drill the four screw holes (approx. 2 mm in diameter) on the wall, then fasten the Mounting Bracket to the wall using four self-tapping screws.
- 4. Put the Rubber Cap onto the Nut. The installation is now complete.

The extension cable can be cut and spliced, however care needs to be taken when reconnecting the wires to ensure watertight integrity. Before cutting the cable make sure it is not plugged into the radio. After you have cut the cable, note the following wires:

Yellow, Green, Brown, Purple, Blue, Green, Red*, Shield*

*: The red wire and shield wire are wrapped in foil. Remove the foil, and separate the red wire from the shield wire.



8-8

8.6.1 How to use an external speaker

The HS-4721 can drive the internal speaker or an external speaker. In noisy locations an external speaker may be connected to the white speaker wires on the HS-4721 routing cable. When connecting an external speaker, follow the procedure below to turn off the internal speaker and enable the external speaker.

- 1. On the HS-4721 Handset, press and hold the **CALL**/ **MENU** key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- Select [General Setup] with the ▲ or ▼ key then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Press the ▼ key to select [EXT Speaker] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Press the ▲ or ▼ key to select [On] (External speaker on) then press the [ENT] soft key to save the selection.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to quit.

8.7 How to Set up the Equipment from the Menu

8.7.1 How to set time offset to show local time

The FM-4721 is set at the factory to show GPS satellite time or UTC time when an optional GPS receiver is connected. If you prefer to use local time, enter the time difference between your local time and UTC. The time offset must be set in order for the radio to display the current time in your area.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Select [Time Offset] with the **CH** knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select the time offset of your location. See the illustration below to find your offset time. [00:00] applies no offset; the time is the same as UTC (Universal Time Coordinated or GPS Satellite Time).



6. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



Time Offset-

QUIT

-02:00



8.7.2 How to show local time or UTC time

You can show UTC time or local time.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Time Area] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [UTC] or [Local] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

8.7.3 How to set the time notation

Time can be shown in 12-hour or 24-hour format.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- Rotate the CH knob to select [Time Display] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [12 Hour] or [24 Hour] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.

8.7.4 How to select GPS COG format

The GPS-measured Course Over Ground can be shown in true or magnetic bearing.

- 1. Press and hold down the CALL/MENU key until the [Setup Menu] appears.
- 2. Select [General Setup] with the CH knob then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 3. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Magnetic] then press the [SELECT] soft key.
- 4. Rotate the **CH** knob to select [Magnetic] or [True] then press the [ENT] soft key to store the selected setting.
- 5. Press the [QUIT] soft key several times to return to radio operation.



	-Time	Area-)
Loca			
FNT		_	



8.8 **Optional Equipment**

8.8.1 Bluetooth Adapter Unit BU-1

The BU-1 installs inside the transceiver and enables bluetooth compatible devices such as a bluetooth headset.

Before starting the installation, turn the transceiver off and disconnect all cables from the transceiver. Touch a metal place to discharge any static electricity from your body.

1. Unfasten six screws to remove the cover.



2. Unplug the connector connected between the cover and the circuit board in the transceiver. Remove the paper tape from the location shown in the figure below.



- 3. Mate the connector on the Bluetooth Adapter circuit board with the connector shown in the illustration above.
- 4. Check that the gasket at the rear of the transceiver is properly seated.



Gasket (Tab on gasket at top right corner)

- 5. Set the cover to the transceiver and connect the connector to the circuit board in the transceiver.
- 6. Close the cover.

8.8.2 Voice Scrambler FVP-42

The Voice Scrambler installs inside the transceiver and provides private communications with an FM-4721 equipped with the FVP-42.

Before starting the installation, turn the transceiver off and disconnect all cables from the transceiver. Touch a metal place to discharge any static electricity from your body.

- 1. Do steps 1 and 2 in section 8.8.1 to remove the cover and unplug a connector.
- 2. Turn the transceiver upside down.
- 3. Unfasten four screws to remove the shield cover.



4. Referring to the figure below, remove the dummy connector and unfasten two screws. The dummy connector can be discarded. Save the screws for later use.



Remove dummy connector.

Unfasten - screw.

8. INSTALLATION

5. Fasten the Voice Scrambler circuit board to the transceiver with the screws unfastened at step 4. Plug in the connector from the Voice Scrambler circuit board where the dummy connector was connected.



6. Close the shield cover.

- 7. Turn the transceiver right side up.
- 8. Check that the gasket at the rear of the transceiver is properly seated. (See the figure at the bottom of page 8-10.)
- 9. Set the cover to the transceiver and connect the connector to the circuit board in the transceiver.
- 10. Close the cover.

APPENDIX 1 CHANNEL ASSIGN-MENTS, MENU TREE

Channel Assignments

This chapter provides the VHF Marine Channel assignments for U.S.A. and International use. Below are listed some data about the charts.

- 1. Channels indicated as VTS are part of the U.S. Coast Guard's Vessel Traffic System.
- 2. Alpha channel numbers, that is, channel numbers followed by the letter A (such as Channel 07A) are simplex channels on the U.S.A. or Canadian channel assignments whose counterparts in the International assignments are duplex channels. International channels do not use alpha numbers. If you call the Coast Guard on CH16, they may ask you to "go to channel 22 Alpha." This is a channel assigned to the U.S.A, and Canadian Coast Guards for handling distress and other calls. If your radio is set for International operation, go to Channel 22 instead of 22A, to communicate with the Coast Guard. To use Channel 22A, your radio must be set for USA or Canada operation, usually by a U/I/C (USA/International/Canada) control or combination of controls. Channel 22 (without an "A") is an International duplex channel for port operations. Some radios indicate an "A" adjacent to the alpha channels on the display; on others "alpha" is not indicated but the proper channel is selected based on the U/I/C setting.
- 3. Bridge-to-Bridge channels (for example, Channel 13) are for use by bridge operators on intercoastal waterways and rivers. It is also used by marine vessels in the vicinity of these bridges for navigation and for communicating with the bridge operators. Note that a limit of 1 Watt is specified for these channels.
- 4. The S/D column on the chart indicates either S (simplex) or D (duplex). Simplex means transmitting and receiving on the same frequency. Only one party at a time can talk, unlike a telephone. Be sure to say "over" and release your microphone push-to-talk switch at the end of each transmission. Duplex operation involves the use of one frequency for transmitting and a the other frequency for receiving. On channels specified as duplex on the charts, correct mode of operation is established automatically by your radio when you select a channel; you cannot change the mode. Release the push-to-talk switch after each transmission in order to listen to the radio.
- 5. Channels normally used by recreational boaters are those that include the term "non-commercial" in the Channel Use column of the chart. Some of these are shared with other users and some are used only in certain geographic regions.
- 6. Marine vessels equipped with VHF radios are required to monitor CH16.

СН	U	С	I	S/D	ТХ	RX	Channel use
01		Х	Х	D	156.050	160.650	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
01A	Х			S	156	.050	Port Operation and Commercial. VTS in selected areas
02		Х	Х	D	156.100	160.700	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
03		Х	Х	D	156.150	160.750	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
03A*	Х			S	156	.150	U.S. Government Only, Coast Guard
04			Х	D	156.200	160.800	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement

VHF marine channel chart

СН	U	С	I	S/D	ТХ	RX	Channel use
04A		Х		S	156.200		Pacific coast: Coast Guard, East Coast: Commercial fishing
05			Х	D	156.250	160.850	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
05A	Х	Х		S	156	.250	Port operation. VTS in Seattle
06	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.300	Inter-ship Safety
07			Х	D	156.350	160.950	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
07A	Х	Х		S	156	.350	Commercial
08	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.400	Commercial (Inter-ship only)
09	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.450	Boater Calling channel, Commercial & Non- commercial (Recreational)
10	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.500	Commercial
11	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.550	Commercial. VTS in selected areas.
12	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.600	Port operation. VTS in selected areas.
13	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.650	Inter-ship Navigation Safety (Bridge-to- bridge)
14	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.700	Port operation. VTS in selected areas.
15	Х			S	-	156.750	Environmental (Receive only)
15		Х	Х	S	156.750		Commercial, non-commercial, ship move- ment (1 W)
16	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.800	International Distress, Safety and Calling
17	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.850	State Controlled (1 W)
18			Х	D	156.900	161.500	Port operation, ship movement
18A	Х	Х		S	156	.900	Commercial
19			Х	D	156.950	161.550	Port operation, ship movement
19A	Х			S	156	.950	US: Commercial
19A		Х		S	156	.950	Coast Guard
20	Х	Х	Х	D	157.000	161.600	Canadian Coast Guard Only,
							International: port operations and shipment
20A	Х			S	157	.000	Port operation
21			Х	D	157.050	161.650	Port operation, ship movement
21A*	Х	X		S	157	.050	U.S. Government Only, Canadian Coast Guard
22			Х	D	157.100	161.700	Port operation, ship movement
22A	Х	X		S	157.100		US and Canadian Coast Guard Liaison and Maritime Safety Information Broadcasts an- nounced on channel 16
23		Х	Х	D	157.150	161.750	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
23A*	Х			S	157	.150	U.S. Government Only
24	Х	Х	Х	D	157.200	161.800	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
25	Х	Х	Х	D	157.250	161.850	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
26	Х	Х	Х	D	157.300	161.900	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
27	Х	Х	Х	D	157.350	161.950	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
28	Х	Х	Х	D	157.400	162.000	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
60		Х	Х	D	156.025	160.625	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
61			Х	D	156.075	160.675	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
61A*	Х	Х		S	156	.075	Public Coast: Coast Guard:
				-			East Coast: commercial fishing only

СН	U	С	Ι	S/D	ТХ	RX	Channel use
62			Х	D	156.125	160.725	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
62A		Х		S	156.125		Public Coast: Coast Guard; East Coast: commercial fishing only
63			Х	D	156.175	160.775	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
63A	Х	Х		S	156	.175	Port Operation and Commercial. VTS in selected areas.
64		Х	Х	D	156.225	160.825	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
64A*	Х	Х		S	156	.225	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
65			Х	D	156.275	160.875	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
65A	Х	Х		S	156	.275	Port Operations
66			Х	D	156.325	160.925	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship movement
66A	Х	Х		S	156	.325	Port Operations
67	X	X	X	S	156.375		US: Commercial. Used for Bridge-to-bridge communications in lower Mississippi River. Intership only, Canada: Commercial fishing, S&R
68	Х	Х	Х	S	156.425		Non-commercial (Recreational)
69	Х	Х	Х	S	156.475		US: Non-commercial (Recreational), Canada: Commercial fishing only, International: Inter-ship, Port operations and Ship movement
70	Х	Х	Х	S	156.525		Digital selective calling (voice communica- tions not allowed)
71	Х	Х	Х	S	156.575		US, Canada: Non-commercial (Recreation- al), International: Port operations and Ship move- ment
72	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.625	Non-commercial (Inter-ship only)
73	X	Х	X	S	156.675		US: Port Operations, Canada: Commercial fishing only, International: Inter-ship, Port operations and Ship movement
74	X	X	Х	S	156.725		US: Port Operations, Canada: Commercial fishing only, International: Inter-ship, Port operations and Ship movement
75	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.775	Port Operations (Inter-ship only) (1W)
76	Х	Х	Х	S	156	.825	Port Operations (Inter-ship only) (1W)
77	Х	Х		S	156	.875	Port Operations (Inter-ship only) (1W)
77			Х	S	156	.875	Port Operations (Inter-ship only)
78			X	D	156.925	161.525	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator), Port operation, ship-movement
78A	Х	Х		S	156	.925	Non-commercial (Recreational)
79			Х	D	156.975	161.575	Port operation and Ship movement
79A	Х	Х		S	156	.975	Commercial
80			Х	D	157.025	161.625	Port operation, ship movement

СН	U	С	I	S/D	ТХ	RX	Channel use
80A	Х	Х		S	157	.025	Commercial
81			Х	D	157.075	161.675	Port operation, ship movement
81A*	Х			S	157	.075	U.S. Government Only -Environmental pro-
							tection operations.
81A		Х		S	157	.075	Canadian Coast Guard Only
82			Х	D	157.125	161.725	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator),
							Port operation, ship movement
82A*	Х	Х		S	157	.125	U.S. Government Only,
							Canadian Coast Guard Only
83		Х		D	157.175	161.775	Canadian Coast Guard Only
83			Х	D	157.175	161.775	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
83A*	Х	X		S	157	.175	U.S. Government Only,
							Canadian Coast Guard Only
84	Х	Х	Х	D	157.225	161.825	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
85	Х	X	Х	D	157.275	161.875	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
86	Х	X	Х	D	157.325	161.925	Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
87		X	Х	S	157	.375	Port operation, ship movement
87A	Х			S	157.375		Public Correspondence (Marine Operator)
88		Х	Х	S	157.425		Port operation, ship movement
88A	Х			S	157	.425	Commercial, Inter-ship Only
WX01	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.550	Weather (receive only)
WX02	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.400	Weather (receive only)
WX03	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.475	Weather (receive only)
WX04	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.425	Weather (receive only)
WX05	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.450	Weather (receive only)
WX06	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.500	Weather (receive only)
WX07	Х	Х	Х	D	-	162.525	Weather (receive only)
WX08	Х	Х	Х	D	-	161.650	Weather (receive only)
WX09	Х	Х	Х	D	-	161.775	Weather (receive only)
WX10	Х	Х	Х	D	-	163.275	Weather (receive only)

*: Simplex channels, 3A, 21A, 23A, 61A, 64A, 81A, 82A and 83A cannot be lawfully used by the general public in U.S.A. waters.

Menu Tree (default settings shown in bold italic)

DSC menu



Setup menu







SPECIFICATIONS OF MARINE VHF RADIOTELEPHONE FM-4721

1.1	Channels	USA, International and Canadian
1.2	Input voltage	12.0 VDC
1.3	Operating voltage range	10.8 to 15.6 VDC
1.4	Current drain	Standby: 0.5 A, Receive: 1.5 A, Transmit: 6.0 A (Hi), 2.5 A (Lo)
2	TRANSMITTER	
2.1	Frequency range	156.025 to 157.425 MHz
2.2	RF output power	25 W (Hi); 1 W (Lo)
2.3	Conducted spurious emis	ssions
		Less than 0.25 µW
2.4	Audio response	Within +1/–3 of a 6 dB/octave pre-emphasis characteristic at
		300 to 3000 Hz
2.5	Audio distortion	5%
2.6	Modulation	16K0G3E, for DSC 16K0G2B
2.7	Frequency stability	±0.0005% (–15 °C to +55 °C)
2.8	FM hum and noise	40 dB
3		
3.1	Frequency range	156.050 to 163.275 MHz
3.2	Sensitivity	20dB quieting: 0.30 μV
		12 dB SINAD: 0.25 μV
		Squelch sensitivity: 0.13 µV
3.3	Modulation acceptance b	pandwidth
		±7.5 kHz
3.4	Selectivity	Spurious and image rejection: -70 dB
		Intermodulation and rejection: -68 dB
3.5	Audio output	2W, 4 ohm

4 ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

4.1	Ambient temperature	-15°C to +55°C
4.2	Relative humidity	93% or less at 40°C
4.3	Degree of protection	
	Transceiver unit	IPX7 (front panel), IPX4 (rear panel)
	Handset	IPX7
4.4	Vibration	IEC 60945 Ed.4



This page is intentionally left blank.

INDEX

Numerics

0 key	
16/9 key	
2/MEM key	
3/SCAN key	
4/DIM key	2-2, 2-6
5/IC key	2-2, 2-13
6/DW key	2-2, 2-8
7/SQRM key	2-2, 2-16
8/PA key	2-2, 2-11
9/FOG key	2-2, 2-12

Α

All ships call	
receiving	3-7
transmitting	3-6
ATIS	
ATIS code	6-1
channel group	6-2
Audio tone	4-4

В	
Bluetooth	
battery saver	2-16
operation	2-15
pairing	2-14
VOX operation	2-15

С

Calendar	4-7
CALL/MENU key	2-1
Calls	
emergency	1-1
other vessel	1-1
CH group	5-1
CH key	2-2
CH13	1-2
CH67	1-2
Channel mode (Int., Canada, USA)	2-6
Channel naming	5-4
Channel preset	
activation	2-11
delete channel	2-11
procedure	2-10
Channel switch time	3-24
CLR/WX key2	-2, 2-7
COG format	4-3
Contrast	4-1
D	
Daily test	
Dimmer	
Distress alert	
canceling	3-5
pausing	3-5
receiving	3-5

transmitting, nature not specified transmitting, nature specified transmitting, with manual position DISTRESS key	. 3-2 . 3-3 . 3-4 , 3-4 3-13
deleting calls DSC distress call log other call log	3-14 3-13 3-13
transmitted DSC call log DSC polling	3-13
interval between position requests stations to poll	3-24 3-23 3-23
DSC test call making with manually entered MMSI	3-26
Directory	3-25 2-8
E	0
Emergency call ENT key External speaker	. 1-1 . 2-2 . 8-8
<i>F</i> Fog alert frequency FOG HORN FUNC key Fuse replacement	. 4-4 2-12 . 2-2 7-3
G Group call Group Directory receiving transmitting to manually entered Directory	3-14 3-17 3-16
н/L key	2-1
1	
Individual call call acknowledge method	. 3-9
receiving, automatic	. 3-7 3-11
receiving, manual	3-12
reply method	. 3-8
transmitting to manually entered MMSI	3-10
transmitting to MMSI in Individua	0 10
Directory	3-10
Intercom	. 3-1
calling	2-14
communication	2-13

K	
Кеу беер	4-4
Local time	4-2
Μ	
Maintenance	7-1
Memory clear	/-3 20
Microprocessor reset	2-9
MMSI	
description	3-1
entry of	3-1
Ν	
Naming station, handset	4-5
NOAA weather channels	
selection of	2-7
weather alert test	2-1 2_7
	2-1
0 Other cell leg	0 10
Other call log	3-13
P	~
PA HAIL	2-11
Position report	4-5
receiving	3-22
ringer	3-20
transmitting to manually entered MMSI	3-21
transmitting to MMSI in Individual	~ ~ 4
Directory	3-21
receiving	3-20
reply setup	3-18
ringer	3-18
transmitting to manually entered MMSI	3-19
transmitting to MMSI in Individual	~
Directory	3-19
Priority scanning	5-2 2_10
PWR key	2-2
P	
Reception	.2-5
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	
Scan memory	2-9
Scanning	
memory scanning	2-9
priority scanning	2-10
programming scan memory	2-9
resuming	5-2
scan type 2-8	
Soft keys	52
function	2-1
programming, handset	4-7
programming, transceiver unit	4-6
SQL CONTROL	2-1

Т	
Telephone call	1-2
Time notation	4-2
Time offset	4-1
Timeout	4-9
Transmission	2-5
Transmit timeout timer	2-6
Transmitted DSC call log3	-13
Troubleshooting	7-2
11	
0	
Units of measurement	4-2
Units of measurement UTC time	4-2 4-2
Units of measurement UTC time	4-2 4-2
Units of measurement UTC time V Voice scrambler2	4-2 4-2 -16
Units of measurementUTC timeUTC time	4-2 4-2 -16 2-1
Units of measurementUTC timeUTC timeUTC time	4-2 4-2 -16 2-1 -15
Units of measurementUTC time V Voice scrambler	4-2 4-2 -16 2-1 -15

FURUNO Worldwide Warranty for Pleasure Boats (Except North America)

This warranty is valid for products manufactured by Furuno Electric Co. (hereafter FURUNO) and installed on a pleasure boat. Any web based purchases that are imported into other countries by anyone other than a FURUNO certified dealer may not comply with local standards. FURUNO strongly recommends against importing these products from international websites as the imported product may not work correctly and may interfere with other electronic devices. The imported product may also be in breach of the local laws and mandated technical requirements. Products imported into other countries as described previously shall not be eligible for local warranty service.

For products purchased outside of your country please contact the national distributor of Furuno products in the country where purchased.

This warranty is in addition to the customer's statutory legal rights.

1. Terms and Conditions of Warranty

FURUNO guarantees that each new FURUNO product is the result of quality materials and workmanship. The warranty is valid for a period of 2 years (24 months) from the date of the invoice, or the date of commissioning of the product by the installing certified dealer.

2. FURUNO Standard Warranty

The FURUNO standard warranty covers spare parts and labour costs associated with a warranty claim, provided that the product is returned to a FURUNO national distributor by prepaid carrier.

The FURUNO standard warranty includes:

- Repair at a FURUNO national distributor
- All spare parts for the repair
- Cost for economical shipment to customer

3. FURUNO Onboard Warranty

If the product was installed/commissioned and registered by a certified FURUNO dealer, the customer has the right to the onboard warranty.

The FURUNO onboard warranty includes

- Free shipping of the necessary parts
- Labour: Normal working hours only
- Travel time: Up to a maximum of two (2) hours
- Travel distance: Up to a maximum of one hundred and sixty (160) KM by car for the complete journey

4. Warranty Registration

For the Standard Warranty - presentation of product with serial number (8 digits serial number, 1234-5678) is sufficient. Otherwise, the invoice with serial number, name and stamp of the dealer and date of purchase is shown.

For the Onboard Warranty your FURUNO certified dealer will take care of all registrations.

5. Warranty Claims

For the Standard Warranty - simply send the defective product together with the invoice to a FURUNO national distributor. For the Onboard Warranty – contact a FURUNO national distributor or a certified dealer. Give the product's serial number and describe the problem as accurately as possible. Warranty repairs carried out by companies/persons other than a FURUNO national distributor or a certified dealer is not covered by this warranty.

6. Warranty Limitations

When a claim is made, FURUNO has a right to choose whether to repair the product or replace it.

The FURUNO warranty is only valid if the product was correctly installed and used. Therefore, it is necessary for the customer to comply with the instructions in the handbook. Problems which result from not complying with the instruction manual are not covered by the warranty.

FURUNO is not liable for any damage caused to the vessel by using a FURUNO product.

The following are excluded from this warranty:

- a. Second-hand product
- b. Underwater unit such as transducer and hull unit
- c. Routine maintenance, alignment and calibration services.
- d. Replacement of consumable parts such as fuses, lamps, recording papers, drive belts, cables, protective covers and batteries.
- e. Magnetron and MIC with more than 1000 transmitting hours or older than 12 months, whichever comes first.
- f. Costs associated with the replacement of a transducer (e.g. Crane, docking or diver etc.).
- g. Sea trial, test and evaluation or other demonstrations.
- h. Products repaired or altered by anyone other than the FURUNO national distributor or an authorized dealer.
- i. Products on which the serial number is altered, defaced or removed.
- j. Problems resulting from an accident, negligence, misuse, improper installation, vandalism or water penetration.
- k. Damage resulting from a force majeure or other natural catastrophe or calamity.
- I. Damage from shipping or transit.
- m. Software updates, except when deemed necessary and warrantable by FURUNO.
- n. Overtime, extra labour outside of normal hours such as weekend/holiday, and travel costs above the 160 KM allowance
- o. Operator familiarization and orientation.

FURUNO Electric Company, March 1, 2011

FURUNO Warranty for North America

FURUNO U.S.A., Limited Warranty provides a twenty-four (24) months LABOR and twenty-four (24) months PARTS warranty on products from the date of installation or purchase by the original owner. Products or components that are represented as being waterproof are guaranteed to be waterproof only for, and within the limits, of the warranty period stated above. The warranty start date may not exceed eighteen (18) months from the original date of purchase by dealer from Furuno USA and applies to new equipment installed and operated in accordance with Furuno USA's published instructions.

Magnetrons and Microwave devices will be warranted for a period of 12 months from date of original equipment installation.

Furuno U.S.A., Inc. warrants each new product to be of sound material and workmanship and through its authorized dealer will exchange any parts proven to be defective in material or workmanship under normal use at no charge for a period of 24 months from the date of installation or purchase.

Furuno U.S.A., Inc., through an authorized Furuno dealer will provide labor at no cost to replace defective parts, exclusive of routine maintenance or normal adjustments, for a period of 24 months from installation date provided the work is done by Furuno U.S.A., Inc. or an AUTHORIZED Furuno dealer during normal shop hours and within a radius of 50 miles of the shop location.

A suitable proof of purchase showing date of purchase, or installation certification must be available to Furuno U.S.A., Inc., or its authorized dealer at the time of request for warranty service.

This warranty is valid for installation of products manufactured by Furuno Electric Co. (hereafter FURUNO). Any purchases from brick and mortar or web-based resellers that are imported into other countries by anyone other than a FURUNO certified dealer, agent or subsidiary may not comply with local standards. FURUNO strongly recommends against importing these products from international websites or other resellers, as the imported product may not work correctly and may interfere with other electronic devices. The imported product may also be in breach of the local laws and mandated technical requirements. Products imported into other countries, as described previously, shall not be eligible for local warranty service.

For products purchased outside of your country please contact the national distributor of Furuno products in the country where purchased.

WARRANTY REGISTRATION AND INFORMATION

To register your product for warranty, as well as see the complete warranty guidelines and limitations, please visit <u>www.furunousa.com</u> and click on "Support". In order to expedite repairs, warranty service on Furuno equipment is provided through its authorized dealer network. If this is not possible or practical, please contact Furuno U.S.A., Inc. to arrange warranty service.

FURUNO U.S.A., INC. Attention: Service Coordinator 4400 N.W. Pacific Rim Boulevard Camas, WA 98607-9408 Telephone: (360) 834-9300 FAX: (360) 834-9400

Furuno U.S.A., Inc. is proud to supply you with the highest quality in Marine Electronics. We know you had several choices when making your selection of equipment, and from everyone at Furuno we thank you. Furuno takes great pride in customer service.

Declaration of Conformity

[FM-4721]

Bulgarian (BG)	С настоящото Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. декларира, че гореспоменат тип радиосъоръжение е в съответствие с Директива 2014/53/EC. Цялостният текст на ЕС декларацията за съответствие може да се намери на следния интернет адрес:
Spanish (ES)	Por la presente, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. declara que el tipo de equipo radioeléctrico arriba mencionado es conforme con la Directiva 2014/53/UE. El texto completo de la declaración UE de conformidad está disponible en la dirección Internet siguiente:
Czech (CS)	Tímto Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. prohlašuje, že výše zmíněné typ rádiového zařízení je v souladu se směrnicí 2014/53/EU. Úplné znění EU prohlášení o shodě je k dispozici na této internetové adrese:
Danish (DA)	Hermed erklærer Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., at ovennævnte radioudstyr er i overensstemmelse med direktiv 2014/53/EU. EU-overensstemmelseserklæringens fulde tekst kan findes på følgende internetadresse:
German (DE)	Hiermit erklärt die Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., dass der oben genannte Funkanlagentyp der Richtlinie 2014/53/EU entspricht. Der vollständige Text der EU-Konformitätserklärung ist unter der folgenden Internetadresse verfügbar:
Estonian (ET)	Käesolevaga deklareerib Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., et ülalmainitud raadioseadme tüüp vastab direktiivi 2014/53/EL nõuetele. ELi vastavusdeklaratsiooni täielik tekst on kättesaadav järgmisel internetiaadressil:
Greek (EL)	Με την παρούσα η Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., δηλώνει ότι ο προαναφερθέντας ραδιοεξοπλισμός πληροί την οδηγία 2014/53/EE. Το πλήρες κείμενο της δήλωσης συμμόρφωσης ΕΕ διατίθεται στην ακόλουθη ιστοσελίδα στο διαδίκτυο:
English (EN)	Hereby, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. declares that the above-mentioned radio equipment type is in compliance with Directive 2014/53/EU. The full text of the EU declaration of conformity is available at the following internet address:
French (FR)	Le soussigné, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., déclare que l'équipement radioélectrique du type mentionné ci-dessusest conforme à la directive 2014/53/UE. Le texte complet de la déclaration UE de conformité est disponible à l'adresse internet suivante:
Croatian (HR)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. ovime izjavljuje da je gore rečeno radijska oprema tipa u skladu s Direktivom 2014/53/EU. Cjeloviti tekst EU izjave o sukladnosti dostupan je na sljedećoj internetskoj adresi:
Italian (IT)	Il fabbricante, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., dichiara che il tipo di apparecchiatura radio menzionato sopra è conforme alla direttiva 2014/53/UE. Il testo completo della dichiarazione di conformità UE è disponibile al seguente indirizzo Internet:
Latvian (LV)	Ar šo Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. deklarē, ka augstāk minēts radioiekārta atbilst Direktīvai 2014/53/ES. Pilns ES atbilstības deklarācijas teksts ir pieejams šādā interneta vietnē:

Lithuanian (LT)	Aš, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., patvirtinu, kad pirmiau minėta radijo įrenginių tipas atitinka Direktyvą 2014/53/ES. Visas ES atitikties deklaracijos tekstas prieinamas šiuo interneto adresu:
Hungarian (HU)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. igazolja, hogy fent említett típusú rádióberendezés megfelel a 2014/53/EU irányelvnek. Az EU-megfelelőségi nyilatkozat teljes szövege elérhető a következő internetes címen:
Maltese (MT)	B'dan, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., niddikjara li msemmija hawn fuq-tip ta' tagħmir tar-radju huwa konformi mad-Direttiva 2014/53/UE. It-test kollu tad-dikjarazzjoni ta' konformità tal-UE huwa disponibbli f'dan l-indirizz tal-Internet li ġej:
Dutch (NL)	Hierbij verklaar ik, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd., dat het hierboven genoemde type radioapparatuur conform is met Richtlijn 2014/53/EU. De volledige tekst van de EU-conformiteitsverklaring kan worden geraadpleegd op het volgende internetadres:
Polish (PL)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. niniejszym oświadcza, że wyżej wymieniony typ urządzenia radiowego jest zgodny z dyrektywą 2014/53/UE. Pełny tekst deklaracji zgodności UE jest dostępny pod następującym adresem internetowym:
Portuguese (PT)	O(a) abaixo assinado(a) Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. declara que o mencionado acima tipo de equipamento de rádio está em conformidade com a Diretiva 2014/53/UE. O texto integral da declaração de conformidade está disponível no seguinte endereço de Internet:
Romanian (RO)	Prin prezenta, Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. declară că menționat mai sus tipul de echipamente radio este în conformitate cu Directiva 2014/53/UE. Textul integral al declarației UE de conformitate este disponibil la următoarea adresă internet:
Slovak (SK)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. týmto vyhlasuje, že vyššie spomínané rádiové zariadenie typu je v súlade so smernicou 2014/53/EÚ. Úplné EÚ vyhlásenie o zhode je k dispozícii na tejto internetovej adrese:
Slovenian (SL)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. potrjuje, da je zgoraj omenjeno tip radijske opreme skladen z Direktivo 2014/53/EU. Celotno besedilo izjave EU o skladnosti je na voljo na naslednjem spletnem naslovu:
Finnish (FI)	Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. vakuuttaa, että yllä mainittu radiolaitetyyppi on direktiivin 2014/53/EU mukainen. EU-vaatimustenmukaisuusvakuutuksen täysimittainen teksti on saatavilla seuraavassa internetosoitteessa:
Swedish (SV)	Härmed försäkrar Furuno Electric Co., Ltd. att ovan nämnda typ av radioutrustning överensstämmer med direktiv 2014/53/EU. Den fullständiga texten till EU-försäkran om överensstämmelse finns på följande webbadress:

Online Resource

http://www.furuno.com/en/support/red_doc